
           

MEETING AGENDA
    

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION

December 7, 2017; 6:30 p.m.
JUANITA POHL CENTER
8513 SW TUALATIN RD
TUALATIN, OR 97062

                           

 

           

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
Members:  Bill Beers (Chair), Kenneth Ball, Alan Aplin, Angela DeMeo, Travis
Stout, Mona St. Clair, Janelle Thompson
Staff:  Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager

  

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

 

A. Approval of the November 16, 2017 TPC Minutes.
 

3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA)
Limited to 3 minutes

  

 

4. ACTION ITEMS   

 

A. Reconvene to consider a Variance to the Wireless Communication Facility (WCF)
Separation Requirement for the POR Durham project in the Light Manufacturing (ML)
Planning District at 10290 SW Tualatin Road (Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B 0008000)
(VAR17-0001)(RESO TDC609-17)

 

B. Resolution NO. TDC 609-17
 

5. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF   

 

6. FUTURE ACTION ITEMS   

 

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION   

 

8. ADJOURNMENT   

 



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

FROM: Lynette Sanford, Office Coordinator

DATE: 12/07/2017

SUBJECT: Approval of the November 16, 2017 TPC Minutes.

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:

Attachments: TPC Minutes 11.16.17



 
UNOFFICIAL 

 

 

 
 

These minutes are not verbatim. The meeting was recorded, and copies of the recording are 
retained for a period of one year from the date of the meeting and are available upon request. 

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION     -                  MINUTES OF November 16, 2017 
 
TPC MEMBERS PRESENT:              STAFF PRESENT 
Bill Beers        Aquilla Hurd-Ravich 
Alan Aplin                                                                                                 Charles H. Benson III 
Janelle Thompson     Lynette Sanford 
Mona St. Clair       
Angela DeMeo                
Travis Stout 
 
TPC MEMBER ABSENT: Kenneth Ball 
 
GUESTS:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
 

Bill Beers, Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:31 pm and reviewed the agenda. Roll 
call was taken.  
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

Mr. Beers asked for review and approval of the September 21, 2017 TPC minutes.  
MOTION by Thompson SECONDED by Beers to approve the minutes as written. 
MOTION PASSED 6-0.   
 

3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA): 
 

None 
 

4. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Consideration of a Variance to the Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
Separation Requirement for the POR Durham project in the Light 
Manufacturing (ML) Planning District at 10290 SW Tualatin Rd (Tax Map/Lot 
2S1 23B 000800) (VAR-17-0001) (RESO TDC 609-17).  

 
Mr. Beers, Chair, read the script for quasi-judicial hearings. Mr. Beers asked the 
Commission members if they had a conflict of interest, bias, or ex parte contact with 
the applicant.  
 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for November 16, 2017 Page 2 
 

Mr. Beers stated that he is familiar with the site and drives by daily.  
 
Ms. St. Clair stated that she has a family member who works for Velocitel but is not 
involved with this project. She also lives near the tower.  
 
Mr. Stout noted he frequents the area and drives by the site.  

    
Ms. DeMeo stated that her employer is located behind the current WCF tower and 
she works in the building.   
 
Charles Benson, III, Associate Planner, presented the staff report for consideration 
of a Variance (VAR17-0001) to allow a new wireless communication facility (WCF) 
within 1,500 feet of an existing WCF. A separate Architectural Review decision will 
review the construction of a new 100-foot-tall monopole with antennas mounted at 
the top and opportunities for ancillary ground equipment if the variance is granted. 
The proposed location is 10290 SW Tualatin Rd. The existing WCF is located at 
10699 SW Herman Road. 
 
Mr. Benson went through the PowerPoint presentation that showed a map of the 
proposed site of the tower, the existing monopole, and the existing and proposed 
coverage of the new WCF tower. Mr. Benson noted that the applicant states that 
modification to the existing WCF tower would result in greater impacts than those of 
construction of an entirely new monopole structure, namely increasing the height of 
the 146-foot-tall existing WCF (which required a variance to permit its construction in 
year 2000) or the topping or removal of trees that were preserved as a condition of 
that Variance (VAR-99-02).   
 
Mr. Benson stated that staff has confirmed via study area field observation that no 
available structures exist in the immediate area on which antennas may be located 
since the maximum structure height in ML planning districts (outside of flagpoles and 
WCFs) is 50 feet.  
 
Mr. Benson stated that the Planning Commission has three options: 

• Approve the proposed Variance (VAR-17-0001); 
• Deny the proposed Variance with findings that state which criteria in Tualatin 

Development Code (TDC) 33.025(1) the applicant fails to meet; or 
• Continue the discussion of the proposed variance and return to the matter at 

a later date.  
 

     Reid Stewart, Acom Consulting, 4015 SW Battaglia Ave, Gresham, OR 97080 
 

Reid Stewart, indicated that he represents the applicant and agrees with staff 
findings.  Mr. Reid noted that the existing WCF facility is surrounded by trees and in 
order to make that a viable option, the trees will need to be removed or the tower 
height will need to be extended by 30 feet.  

  



TPC MEETING - Minutes for November 16, 2017 Page 3 
 

Mr. Reed acknowledged that the owner/operator of the existing tower has provided 
information before this meeting regarding hypothetical frequencies and he disputes 
these. Mr. Stewart believes that removing the trees and extending the existing tower 
will create more of a visual impact than building a new tower. He added that the 
equipment on the tower has been abandoned. 

 
Mr. Stewart noted that Verizon and T-Mobile both have evaluated the American 
Tower Corp. (ATC) site and declared it is not a viable option for them and it will be 
more expensive to use or demolish the existing tower.   
 

Mr. Aplin asked who owns the existing tower. Mr. Stewart replied that it’s American 
Tower Corporation (ATC) – they lease space on the tower and are a financial 
competitor with the applicant.  
 
Mr. Stewart added that the Tualatin Police Department has stated that cell coverage 
is lacking in the area and they rely on it for communication.  
 
Ms. DeMeo inquired about the search radius and if there are viable options. Mr. 
Stewart replied that there are no existing structures within the radius that have 
adequate height due to zoning restrictions.   
 
Alan Sorem, Saalfeld Griggs PC, 250 Church Street SE, Salem, OR 
 
Mr. Sorem stated that he is a Land Use Attorney representing American Tower 
Corp. who is the existing tower owner. He noted that he provided the City with 
additional evidence earlier in the day.   
 
Nick Caezza, American Tower Corp, Boston MA 
 
Mr. Caezza stated that he’s an attorney for American Tower Corp. He stated that 
American Tower owns and manages approximately 41,000 towers – some of which 
have Verizon on them.  
 
Mr. Sorem stated the tower can be modified to accommodate another provider. The 
tall trees causing the interference are owned by the City and can be removed to 
eliminate the interference. American Tower Corp. is currently in negotiations with the 
City to renew the lease. Mr. Sorem indicated that the current tower is 146 feet. If 
they added 4 feet to the tower, it would be high enough to accommodate T-Mobile 
and Sprint. Mr. Sorem added that in the 1999 Variance decision for this existing 
tower, the protection of trees was not a condition of approval. Mr. Sorem added that 
the existing site is not visible from the road and if the trees were eliminated, the 
visual impact will be minimal.  
 
Mr. Aplin asked if the existing tower is structurally built to be 150 feet high. Mr. 
Sorem answered affirmatively and has a letter from a structural engineer.   
 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for November 16, 2017 Page 4 
 

Mr. Sorem requested that the hearing remain open for 21 days. Ms. Hurd-Ravich 
stated that is it up to the Commission but is concerned about the 120-day limit on 
the variance application. If we leave it open, it does not leave enough time for the 
Council hearings. Ms. Hurd-Ravich added that 7 days is the statutory minimum.  
 
Mr. Aplin asked how many trees were proposed to be removed. Mr. Sorem replied 
that there will be more than 20 but less than 100.  Mr. Aplin asked if is the City’s 
decision whether or not to remove the trees. Mr. Sorem answered affirmatively and 
added if the trees are not removed the tower will need to be increased to 150 feet, 
which will need a variance.   
 
Mr. Caezza noted that another viable option is cutting the trees down to 90 feet and 
to plant trees at the bottom for future growth.   
 
Ms. St. Clair asked if the City was in agreement to remove the trees, would ATC 
absorb the cost. Mr. Sorem answered affirmatively and noted that the proceeds of 
the cut trees will be split between ATC and the City.  
 
Mr. Aplin asked if Verizon is under lease to use the existing tower. Mr. Sorem replied 
that there is no lease with Verizon and that Sprint is on the current lease. 
 
Mr. Sorem reiterated that the criterion relating to modifying the existing tower has 
not been met and the only option is to deny the variance request.  
 
Mr. Stewart stated that ATC has made assumptions about Verizon and T-Mobile. 
Mr. Stewart has a letter from T-Mobile and Verizon stating that they have evaluated 
the tower and the modifications will be unsatisfactory. Mr. Stewart also has 
documentation from a licensed engineer familiar with the particulars of this site who 
has stated that it will have to be increased more than 4 feet above the 146 foot 
height to be beneficial.  
 
Ms. DeMeo asked if the rebuttal comments from Verizon and T-Mobile are included 
in the packet. Mr. Stewart replied that the letters are in the packet. Mr. Stout asked 
how much more than 4 feet would be a satisfactory level. Mr. Stewart responded 
that it would have to increase 30 feet to be satisfactory.  
 
Mr. Beers asked if the existing tower was increased 15 feet and the trees were 
removed, would both carriers have coverage. Mr. Stewart responded that if they 
were to increase the existing tower 30 feet it would be satisfactory.  
 
Mr. Sorem stated that T-Mobile has stated that the existing tower is their first choice 
without the trees. Furthermore, extending the tower 30 feet is not consistent with 
what their engineers provided.   
 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich stated that since Mr. Sorem has requested that the record be left 
open, the Planning Commission has to grant a minimum of 7 days. The Commission 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for November 16, 2017 Page 5 
 

members can choose to close the public hearing, gather additional evidence, and 
reconvene and deliberate with that evidence.  Ms. Hurd-Ravich added that 7 days 
from tonight is Thanksgiving Day but the City is closed. Furthermore, the room is not 
available until December 4, 5, or 7th, which will keep us within the 120 day limit.  
 
Mr. Aplin asked about the practical modification of the tower and if the applicant has 
to provide evidence to meet the criteria. Ms.Hurd-Ravich responded that the 
applicant has to provide the evidence but it’s up to the deciding body if the evidence 
is meeting the criteria.   
 
Mr. Beers stated that he would like a couple documents from the tower owners. He 
would like to see what it would look like at 146 feet, and documentation from T-
Mobile that they would like to be on their tower. In regards to the applicant, he would 
like to see what the coverage map looks like with a 146 foot tower and no trees and 
an appropriate antennae space between Sprint, Verizon and T Mobile. Ms. 
Thompson would like to see the existing lease for the existing tower. Mr. Sorem said 
the lease is set to expire in 2020 and the new lease will provide the City with 
revenue share.   
 
Mr. Aplin asked if the City is eager to remove 20-100 trees. Ms. Hurd-Ravich replied 
that it hasn’t been negotiated but she has posed the question casually and it will be 
met with some resistance. It is not a Council decision, it’s up to Facilities who 
manage the property along with the City Manager. The second piece is what land 
use process will be required to remove the trees. There was an Architectural Review 
completed in 1999. We are in the process of retrieving the file to see what conditions 
were attached regarding tree preservation.  
 
Ms. Thompson asked if the existing tower will be required to have a 50 percent 
screening. Ms. Hurd-Ravich answered affirmatively.  
 
The Commission members agreed that they will reconvene on December 7th at 6:30 
pm. Ms. Hurd-Ravich stated that we are required to post the agenda 7 days in 
advance and would like the additional evidence at that time. Mr. Sorem and the 
applicant both stated that they will have the additional material available within 7 
days.    
 

5. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF: 
 

None 
 

6.     FUTURE ACTION ITEMS 
 

Ms. Hurd-Ravich stated that the TPC meeting scheduled for December 21st will be 
canceled due to lack of agenda items, but we will continue this hearing on December 
7th. In January, we will accept nominations for a Chair and Vice Chair for the 
Commission.  



TPC MEETING - Minutes for November 16, 2017 Page 6 
 

 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich announced that Charles Benson III will be leaving the City of Tualatin 
and moving to Seattle. This will be his last Planning Commission meeting.   
 

7.      ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 

None.  
 

8.       ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION by DeMeo SECONDED by Thompson to adjourn the meeting at 7:58 pm.  
 
 
 
 
______________________________ Lynette Sanford, Office Coordinator 
 
 
 



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

FROM: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager

DATE: 12/07/2017

SUBJECT: Reconvene to consider a Variance to the Wireless Communication Facility (WCF)
Separation Requirement for the POR Durham project in the Light Manufacturing
(ML) Planning District at 10290 SW Tualatin Road (Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B
0008000) (VAR17-0001)(RESO TDC609-17)

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:
A public hearing began on November 16, 2017 to consider a request by Acom Consulting for a
variance to the separation standards of wireless communication facilities.  At the hearing, an
opponent to the proposal requested the record to be left open for 21 days.  The Planning
Commission granted this request under statutory obligation ORS 197.763.  The applicant and
opponent submitted new evidence on November 22, 2017. This new evidence was posted and
distributed for consideration by the Planning Commission.  The applicant has seven days to
rebut any evidence prior to the Planning Commission reconvening on December 7, 2017.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Tualatin Planning Commission consider the staff report and
supporting attachments.  Since the public hearing on November 16, 2017, staff was made
aware of new evidence submitted by the opponent that claims the existing wireless
communication facility can be modified to support another provider.  Based on this new
evidence staff no longer finds that the application meets the variance criteria in 33.025
(1)(a)(ii).  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Acom Consulting, Inc. proposes to construct a new unmanned wireless communication facility
(WCF) on behalf of Lendlease (US) Telecom Holdings LLC - c/o PI Tower Development LLC,
Verizon Wireless, and the property owner, Tote 'N Stow, Inc. on the southwest corner of 10290
SW Tualatin Road.  The proposed WCF would include a new 100-foot monopole support tower
with antennas mounted at the top and opportunities for ancillary ground equipment including
equipment cabinets, natural gas generator, cabling and ice bridge will be located below in a
new 25' x 48' secure fenced lease area surrounding the tower.  It is anticipated the the proposed
WCF will generate approximately 1-2 visits per month from a site technician.  

The proposed WCF would be located within 1,500 feet of an existing  WCF at 10699 SW
Herman Road.  Tualatin Development Code 73.470(9) requires that WCFs are separated by
1,500 feet: 



The minimum distance between WCF monopoles shall be 1500 feet.  Separation shall be
measured by following a straight line from one monopole to the next.  For purposes of
hteis section, a wireless communication facility monopole shall include wireless
communication facility monopole for which  the City has issued a development permit, or
for which an application has been filed and not denied. 

The applicant, Acom Consulting, seeks a variance from this code requirement.  As stated in
TDC Section 33.025(1) " The City may grant a variance from the provisions of TDC 73.470(9),
which requires a 1,500-foot separation between WCFs, providing the applicant demonstrates
compliance with (a) or (b)."  The original application provided findings for 33.025(1)(a)(i)
through (iii).   

Staff has revised our findings since receiving evidence from American Tower Corporation
stating that the existing monopole at 10699 SW Herman Road can be modified to
accommodate another provider, revised Analysis and Findings are included as Attachment A. 
The original staff report and all attachments are included as Attachment D.

The grand the requested variance, the TPC must find the applicant has demonstrated
compliance with the following:

TDC 33.025(1)(a): Coverage and Capacity
(i) It is technically not practicable to provide the needed capacity or coverage the tower is
intended to provide and locate the proposed tower on available sites more than 1,500
feet from an existing wireless communication facility or from the proposed location of a
wireless communication facility for which an application has been filed and not denied. 
The needed capacity or coverage shall be documented with a Radio Frequency report.  

The applicant states that the potential sites outside of the 1,500- foot radius from the existing
WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road were eliminated from consideration due to the lack of
adequacy of service improvements from these locations and their close proximity to residential
areas where these facilities are not permitted or where visual impacts may occur.  The applicant
also noted that the existing WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road was not a suitable location due to
interference from trees surrounding the site (which would affect coverage) and the applicant
provided a RF Engineer Interference Letter in addition to the required RF report. 

(ii) The collocation report, required as part of the Architectural Review submittal, shall
document that the existing WCFs within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF, or a WCF within
1500 feet of the proposed WCF for which an application has been filed and not denied,
cannot be modified to accommodate another provider. 

The applicant states that modifications to the existing WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road required
to host the proposed antennas would result in greater impacts than those of constructing an
entirely new monopole structure at the proposed Tote 'N Stow site, namely increasing the height
of the 146-foot tall existing WCF (which required a variance to permit its construction in 2000) or
the topping or removal of trees that were preserved as a condition of that variance (VAR99-02). 
The maximum permitted height of the WCFs in the Light Manufacturing (ML) Planning District is
100 feet and the proposed WCF would not require a height variance.

Staff has modified the original findings for this criterion based on evidence submitted by the
opponent's representatives of American Tower Corporation, Saalfeld Griggs, at the public
hearing on November 16, 2017.  The opponent evidence stated: 



 
"The decision granting ATC the variance to construct its existing tower (VAR-99-02) does
not contain a condition of approval prohibiting any further clearing of trees (the "Existing
Decision").  The Existing Decision did include findings of fact that contemplated some
tree removal and trimming of trees in a manner as less impactful as necessary. [...] 
Therefore, upon issuance of a tree removal permit and with the consent of the City of
Tualatin as the landlord and owner of the surrounding property, it is feasible for ATC to
remove the exiting trees within the approximately 155-foot radius of the ATC tower.  As the
supplemental RF report and map identify, if ATC were to remove the trees creating such
interference, coverage would be acceptable for the service parameters provided in the
record.  Therefore, the staff report [from November 16, 2017] contains an incorrect
findings of fact in finding that removal of the trees cannot occur."

 
 Staff notes there are two alternatives to modify the existing tower pending property owner
concurrence and approval. One alternative is to request a Tree Removal Permit in order to
remove trees that could be causing interference.  The second alternative is to extend the height
of the existing tower either to the total height granted by VAR99-02 of 146- feet total inclusive of
monopole and antennas or request a height variance.  The modified analysis and findings and
related exhibits are included as Attachment A.  

Additional materials from the applicant and the opponent are included as Attachment B-
Materials from applicant and Attachment C- Materials from opponent.  

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Approval of VAR17-0001 would result in the following: 

Allows the applicant to locate a Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) at 10290 SW
Tualatin Road; and
Allows staff to review an Architectural Review (AR) for the proposed WCF project with an
appropriate location. 

Denial of VAR17-0001 would result in the following: 

Prohibits the applicant from locating a WCF at 10290 SW Tualatin Road.

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
The Tualatin Planning Commission has two options 

Approve the proposed variance with appropriate findings that state the application meets
the criteria of TDC 33.025(1); or

1.

Deny the proposed variance with appropriate findings that the application fails to meet the
criteria of TDC 33.025(1)

2.

Attachments: Attachment A- Revised Analysis and Findings and Exhibits
Attachment B- Supplemental materials from Acom (applicant)
Attachment C- Supplemental materials from ATC (opponent)
Attachment D - Staff Report and Attachments from November 17, 2016
Attachment E - Applicant Rebuttal November 29, 2017



POR DURHAM WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY (WCF) 
 

VARIANCE APPLICATION (VAR-17-0001) 
 

ATTACHMENT A: ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 
 
 
The issue before the Tualatin Planning Commission (TPC) is consideration of a Variance (VAR) request for 
Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) separation that would allow the construction of a new 100-foot-
tall monopole with antennas mounted at the top and opportunities for ancillary ground equipment 
within 1,500 feet of an existing WCF located at 10699 SW Herman Road approximately 800 feet 
southwest of the proposed WCF location. The proposed WCF would be located at 10290 SW Tualatin 
Road (Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B 000800) on a property owned by Tote ‘N Stow and operates as a storage 
facility for recreational vehicles. 

In order to grant the proposed variance, the request must meet the approval criteria of Tualatin 
Development Code (TDC) Section 33.025(1). The applicant prepared a narrative that addresses the 
criteria, which is included within the application materials (Attachment B), and staff has reviewed this 
and other application materials and included pertinent excerpts below. 

The following materials and descriptions are based largely on the applicant’s narrative; staff has made 
some minor edits. Staff comments, findings, and conditions of approval are in Italic font. 

Section 33.025 – Criteria for Granting a Variance for a Wireless Communication Facility. 

No variance to the separation or height requirements for wireless communication facilities shall be 
granted by the Planning Commission unless it can be shown that the following criteria are met.  The 
criteria for granting a variance to the separation or height requirements for wireless communication 
facilities shall be limited to this section, and shall not include the standard variance criteria of Section 
33.020, Conditions for Granting a Variance that is not for a Sign or a Wireless Communication Facility. 

(1) The City may grant a variance from the provisions of TDC 73.470(9), which requires a 1500-foot 
separation between WCFs, providing the applicant demonstrates compliance with (a) or (b) 
below. 
(a) coverage and capacity. 

(i) It is technically not practicable to provide the needed capacity or coverage the 
tower is intended to provide and locate the proposed tower on available sites more 
than 1,500 feet from an existing wireless communication facility or from the 
proposed location of a wireless communication facility for which an application has 
been filed and not denied. The needed capacity or coverage shall be documented 
with a Radio Frequency report; 

Applicant Response: Verizon Wireless, the co-applicant, has done extensive research looking at 
opportunities in the area to collocate on existing towers or buildings, as that is always a preferred option 
when available. If an existing tower or structure is not available at the specified height or not attainable 
because of space constraints or unreliable structural design, then Verizon Wireless will propose a new 
tower. In this instance, there is one existing tower, the ATC tower, which is located outside of the search 
area designated as usable by Verizon Wireless’ RF department, but within the 1,500-foot radius of the 

Attachment A pg 1



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
December 7, 2017 
Page 2 of 5 

proposed facility. This tower is not viable as a solution to meet their coverage and capacity objectives 
due to the existing trees that would cause interference. There are no other existing towers available to 
collocate on within the area of interest thus a new tower is being proposed, which will in turn be 
available for other providers to collocate on in the future. 

In order to meet the Verizon’s coverage and capacity objectives, it is necessary to site a tower within the 
search ring provided by Verizon’s RF department as shown below. Moving outside this search ring is 
technically not practicable and has adverse effects on providing the needed coverage and capacity 
objectives the tower is intended to provide, which include nearby high-traffic residential areas to the 
North. Siting outside the search ring can also create interference with other nearby network sites where 
coverage may overlap. 

The Applicant is requesting a variance to the 1,500-foot tower separation requirement. There is an 
existing 146-foot ATC monopole support structure outside of the search ring, approximately 750 feet to 
the SW of the proposed support tower, located at 10699 SW Herman Road. Per the tower owner, there 
is currently available space on the tower at the 100-foot level, however this is not high enough to avoid 
interference from multiple trees surrounding the tower and still meet coverage and capacity objectives 
to the North, as detailed in the attached RF Usage and Facility Justification Report and RF Engineer 
Interference Letter. 

Locating the tower within the search ring and outside the 1,500-foot radius of the nearby existing ATC 
tower is also not a desirable alternative as it would mean locating in another part of the ML zone 
without existing screening or in the RML or RMH zone, where a conditional use permit would be 
required and where it would be very visible to nearby residential areas. In addition, T-Mobile has also 
indicated that they intend on co-locating on the proposed WCF, if approved, as the existing ATC tower 
to the SW will not meet their coverage and capacity requirements either as noted in the attached Letter 
from T-Mobile RF. 

Staff notes that the search ring is defined by the service provider based on their coverage and capacity 
objectives. As highlighted in the “RF Usage and Facility Justification” report, the proposed WCF is 
intended to improve service to the residential areas immediately adjacent to and on both sides of the 
Tualatin River (see Figures C-1 and C-2). Areas within the search ring but outside of the 1,500-foot radius 
of the existing WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road are either within or closer to residential planning districts 
which either prohibit completely or restrict heights of WCFs (see Figure C-3). 

  
Figure C-1: Existing Coverage Figure C-2: Proposed Coverage 

Attachment A pg 2



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
December 7, 2017 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
Figure C-3: Search Ring and 1,500-Foot Separate Overlap Map 

Staff finds that this criteria is met. 

(ii) The collocation report, required as part of the Architectural Review submittal, shall 
document that the existing WCFs within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF, or a WCF 
within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF for which application has been filed and not 
denied, cannot be modified to accommodate another provider; and 

Applicant Response: The only existing monopole tower located within 1,500 feet of the proposed 
location cannot be modified as it is not designed to be extended to the necessary height required to 
avoid interference from the tall trees currently surrounding the tower. The existing tower would need to 
be removed and replaced with a new tower at least 20-30 feet taller to avoid interference unless the 
trees were to be removed or reduced in height to approximately the 100-foot level or lower. 

Topping the trees would create undesirable visual impacts to nearby residential areas, whereas the 
proposed location is well screened to nearby residential areas to the North and does not require the 
removal or trimming of any existing trees. The topped trees would also create a negative visual impact 
on their own, as over a third of the height would need to be removed to avoid interference. 

Opponent (Saalfeld Griggs/ATC) Response: The variance (VAR-99-02) that allowed the construction of 
the existing ATC WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road did not contain a condition of approval prohibiting any 
further clearing of trees; in addition, this decision did include findings of fact that contemplated some 
tree removal and trimming of trees in a manner as less impactful as necessary. Therefore, upon issuance 
of a tree removal permit and with the consent of the City of Tualatin as the landlord and owner of the 
surrounding property, it is feasible for ATC to remove the existing trees within the approximately 155-
foot radius of the ATC tower (see Exhibit A). As the supplemental RF report and map identify (see Exhibit 
B), if ATC were to remove the trees creating such interference, coverage would be acceptable for the 
service parameters provided in the record. Therefore, the staff report contains an incorrect finding of 

Attachment A pg 3



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
December 7, 2017 
Page 4 of 5 

fact in finding that removal of the trees cannot occur. A copy of the VAR-99-02 decision is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for your reference. ATC requests the Planning Commission to deny the 
proposed variance request. 

Based on the conditions at 10699 SW Herman Road, modifying the existing WCF to attach functioning 
antennas would require either an additional height variance for the existing WCF (which already received 
one to permit its construction in 2000) or a forced height reduction in the trees adjacent to the existing 
monopole. In the analysis and findings for the variance (VAR-99-02) that allowed the construction of the 
existing 146-foot-tall WCF, it was noted that one of the reasons for the granting of that variance was to 
preserve the grove of approximately 50 tall conifers at heights of 100 to 120 feet (the construction of the 
existing WCF resulted in the removal of 6 trees). VAR-99-02 included the following: 

“The City as the landowner desires to retain the large conifer trees on the subject portion of the 
Operations Center property and requires that development such as the proposed 
communications facility disturb as few conifer trees on the site as possible. The applicant states 
that wireless RF signals must travel in an unobstructed path from the facility to the user. Because 
the tower and antennae are proposed to be located in the grove of 100'-120' tall conifers and the 
City as the property owner does not wish to have the obstructing trees removed, the antennae 
must be at a height greater than the height of the neighboring trees (with consideration of the 
future growth of the trees).” 

As such, barring a reversal in the City’s preference to not remove trees on its Operations Center site, the 
options for locating a new WCF in this area include either further increasing the height of the existing 
146-foot-tall WCF (the maximum allowed WCF height in the Light Manufacturing [ML] Planning District 
is 100 feet) or constructing a new structure. The applicant is making the case that a new 100-foot-tall 
structure would result in less impacts than extending the height of the existing WCF at 10699 SW 
Herman Road. 

Staff notes that barring a discussion of impacts to removing more than 50 tall conifer trees within 155 
feet of the existing ATC tower at 10699 SW Herman Road, the opponent assertion that the existing 
facility can be modified accommodate another provider—which would require at minimum a tree 
removal permit and some form of architectural review yet to be determined—is factually correct.  

Staff finds that this criteria is not met. 

(iii) There are no available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers on which 
antennas may be located and still provide the approximate coverage the tower is 
intended to provide. 

Applicant Response: No available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers with adequate height 
to meet coverage objectives are located in the geographical search ring necessary to provide coverage. 
See Search Ring and ½ mile radius maps. 

Staff notes that—through field visits—the  applicant is correct in their assertion that there are no other 
structures of suitable height to attach antennas that would provide approximate coverage as the 
proposed WCF, also noting the maximum structure height (outside of flagpoles and WCFs) of 50 feet in 
the Light Manufacturing (ML) Planning District. 

Staff finds that this criteria is met. 

Attachment A pg 4



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
December 7, 2017 
Page 5 of 5 

(b) site characteristics. The proposed monopole location includes tall, dense evergreen trees 
that will screen at least 50% of the proposed monopole from the RL District or from a 
small lot subdivision in the RML District. 

Applicant Response: Application has demonstrated compliance with Section 33.025(1)(a) above, 
however proposed location also meets this requirement and includes tall, dense evergreens trees that 
will screen at least 50% of the proposed monopole from adjacent residential areas. The proposed 
support tower is sited in the least intrusive location possible to cover the gap in coverage and capacity. 

Staff notes that the applicant has chosen to demonstrate compliance with TDC Sections 33.025(1)(a)(i) 
through (iii) above; therefore, a compliance determination with TDC Section 33.025(1)(b) is not required 
and the standards in this section do not apply. 

SUMMARY OF ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

Based on the application materials and the analysis and findings presented above, staff finds that VAR-
17-0001 meets all criteria of TDC 32.025(1)(a), “Criteria for Granting a Variance for a Wireless 
Communication Facility.” As staff finds that the VAR-17-0001 proposal does not meet TDC 
32.025(1)(a)(ii), the Planning Commission should not grant a variance from the 1500-foot-separation 
provisions of TDC 73.470(9). 

 

 

 

Exhibits 

Exhibit A:  Operations Cell Tower Site with 155-foot radius 

Exhibit B:  Complete Saalfeld Griggs/ATC Response Packet  

Attachment A pg 5



-riP --J
•r-i:

November 16, 2017

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL: ahurd-ravich@tualatin.gov
Original to follow via hand delivery

City of Tualatin Planning Commission
Attn: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich

18880 SW Martinazzi Ave

Tualatin, OR 97062-7092

Saalfeld
Griggs

RE: PI Tower Development Project OR-Tualatin-Durham/ 10290 SW Tualatin Road
(Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B 000800) (VAR-17-0001)
Our File No: 00000-28543

Dear Ms. Hurd-Ravich and Honorable Planning Commissioners:

I represent American Tower Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Tower Asset Sub, Inc., a Delaware
corporation ("ATC), which owns a wireless communications facility located at 10318 SW Herman Road,
Tualatin, Oregon (the "ATC Tower"). ATC is impacted by the proposed wireless communication facility
on behalf of Lendlease (US) Telecom Holdings LLC - c/o PI Tower Development LLC, Verizon Wireless,
and the property owner. Tote 'N Stow, Inc. (herein collectively "Applicant') on the southwest corner of
10290 SW Tualatin Road, Tualatin, Oregon (herein the "Subject Property"). Applicant's proposed tower
is located within 1,500 feet of the ATC Tower; specifically, the proposed tower is approximately 750 feet
from the ATC Tower. Therefore, under the Tualatin Development Code Section 33.025(l)(a) a variance
is needed. Applicant's proposed findings as justification for the variance to the 1,500-foot radius
requirement from an existing tower is an assertion that the existing ATC Tower is not suitable for co-
location of additional carriers because of interference from the trees surrounding the site and has
provided an RF interference letter in addition to its RF report. ATC acknowledges that under the current
circumstances, the height of the trees would create interference for new co-location of carriers below
the existing carrier heights; however, the interference from the trees can be eliminated. ATC has
provided supplemental RF coverage analysis, which is attached hereto and incorporated by this
reference herein, that supports ATC's position.

ATC submits these comments for the purpose of correcting the factual record and the proposed legal
conclusions contained in the staff report; specifically, the decision granting ATC the variance to
construct its existing tower (VAR-99-02) does not contain a condition of approval prohibiting any further
clearing of trees (the "Existing Decision"). The Existing Decision did include findings of fact that
contemplated some tree removal and trimming of trees in a manner as less impactful as necessary.
However, in the approximately 17 years following the issuance of the Existing Decision, the
circumstances have changed and the surrounding trees have grown. Therefore, upon Issuance of a tree

Park P'ace, Suite 200
250 Church Street S6

Salem, Oregon 97301

Post Office Box 470

Saiem, Oregon 97308

tel 503.399.1070

fax 503.371.2927

www.sglaw.com
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 1



November 16, 2017

City of Tualatin Planning Commission
Page 2

removal permit and with the consent of the City of Tualatin as the landlord and owner of the
surrounding property, it is feasible for ATC to remove the existing trees within the approximately 155-
foot radius of the ATC Tower. As the supplemental RF report and map identify, if ATC were to remove
the trees creating such interference, coverage would be acceptable for the service parameters provided
in the record. Therefore, the staff report contains an incorrect finding of fact in finding that removal of
the trees cannot occur. A copy of the VAR-99-02 decision is attached hereto and incorporated herein for
your reference.

Alternatively, ATC could potentially file a new variance application requesting permission to further
extend the height of the ATC Tower by approximately twenty feet in recognition of the change in
circumstances created by the passage of time and the annual growth of the trees and data coverage
needs existing today as compared to 1999, when ATC originally applied for the Existing Decision. Such a
variance application, If requested, would likely be approved and is certainly feasible. Therefore, ATC has
two options in obtaining the necessary approvals for servicing the coverage request as identified in the
existing record. Accordingly, the assertion that ATC cannot, as a matter of law, provide the requested

coverage Is inaccurate.

ATC requests the Planning Commission to deny the proposed variance request. In the alternative, ATC
requests the Planning Commission to keep the record open for a period of not less than 21 days to give
ATC an opportunity to provide additional evidence and argument as it pertains to the proposed variance
request.

Thank you for your time and attention.

Sincerely,

M.Sorem
asorem@sglaw.com

Voice Message «303

AMS:]sm

Enclosures

cc: Client

4839-8003-3877, v. 3 Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 2



Micah Hawthorne
Framingham, MA c: 617-828-3967
linkedin.com/in/micahhawthorne micah.hawthorne@yahoo.com

SUMMARY

Proven implementation and results driven professional with 10+ years of technical program management
and 5+ years of pre-sales engineering/consulting experience planning, implementing, deploying, and
integrating wireless mobile networks. Recognized as a strategic thinker, consistent finisher, creative problem
solver, and successful team leader. Exceptional oral and written communicator with an ability to influence
through collaboration, business acumen, and technical subject matter expertise.

CORE COMPETENCIES

• Program & project management • Speed-to-market risk analysis and planning
• Multi-projectengagement and coordination • RF/BH site planning and network deployment
• Cross-functional collaboration • Pre-sales technical analyst and support

EDUCATION & TRAINING

MBA - High Technological Focused Northeastern University, Boston, MA
Certificate in Applied Project Management Boston University Corporate Education, Waltham, MA
BS in Electrical Engineering University of South Alabama, Mobile, MA
Candidate for BS in Electrical Engineering Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge, MA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

AMERICAN TOWER, Woburn, MA 2012-2017
Principal Sales Engineer - Project Manager & Network Development Planning Partner; 5+ yrs.
• Proactively investigate and pursue incremental business with Sales team by driving coverage solutions in

challengingareas. Additionally support Sales team to achieve two commercial$100K+ MRR deals.

• Support Business Development efforts by analyzing requirements, understanding network coverage
goals, and recommending innovative solutions to win comprehensive deals. Research technology trends
to identify roadmaps that enhance long term contract value with Carrier and Vertical Market customers.
Successes include 20+ new sites RFP with Pitkin County, CO., 200+ sites deal for AT&T In-Flight project,
and 20+ sites deal with Pacific Data Vision long term equipment upgrade plans.

• Acquire and analyze carrier network performance data and develop metrics paired with site intelligence to
proactively identify multi-tenant tower location opportunities. Released 400+ search areas over 1 year
based on lack of 3G voice and 4G LTE data service in suburban growth markets and several heavily
trafficked thoroughfares with no tower infrastructure. Partnered with Network Development teams to
evaluate and lease land assets for proactive tower development.

ERICSSON (RF/BH organization spun off from Clearwire), Waltham, MA 2004-2012
RF/BH Manager New England - Program Manager; 9 mos.
• Directed a team of 10 Project Managers accountable for network performance monitoring, trouble ticket

administration and closeout for post launch service optimization. The team served as 1st line local
engineering support for capacity augments, RF repeaters, and In-Building DAS, for Clearwire's 4G
network of 850+ sites stretching across 7 Northeast markets from Upstate NY to Boston, MA. Achieved
Bonus Level for 35% of network KPIs within 6 months of customer launch weathering 30% head count
reduction. Target exceeded on remaining 65% of KPIs. Coordinated action plans with Field Operations
team to exceed 99.75% network availability target and timelytrouble ticket closeouts in all markets.

CLEARWIRE (40 RF/BH organization spun off from Sprint Nextel), Waltham, MA
RF/BH Manager New England - Program Manager; 2.5 yrs.
• Managed project team of up to 11 RF/BH Engineers responsible for designing, planning, integrating, and

launching 450+ sites across 5 New England markets. Met strategic coverage objectives with over 8M
POPs served. Achieved MW BH connectivityon 97% of sites reducing BH Opex by approx. 80%.

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 3



• Coordinated the RF/BH team's design efforts, aligning metrics and goals with local and remote cross-
functional teams, including Site Acquisition, Construction, Field Operations, National Engineering, and
Sales & Marketing teams. Regularly evaluated, adjusted, and presented project milestone progress to
executive team. Challenges included on-the-fly network redesigns due to difficult zoning. Collaborated
daily with Network Deployment's construction efforts ensuring on time 2010 market launches in line with
End of Year investor commitment.

• Developed RF/BH team led On-Air site integration and network acceptance process. Removal of
implementation bottle necks enabled run rate of 40+ sites per week and associated MW backhaul links.

SPRINT NEXTEL (Nextel merger with Sprint in 2005), Bedford, MA
RF Design Manager New England North - Project Management Lead; 2 yrs.
• Headed team of RF design engineers responsible for 400+ single- and multi- technology site build plan

deployment throughout New England area. Deployments of note included site relocations and Cell-On-
Wheels (COWs) for capacity expansion in Boston core and special events.

• Standardized zoning message and presentation format for 3^*^ party Site Acquisition and Design team.
Debated the efficacy via mock trials. Enabled consistent message platform for better public awareness to
towns, engineer-to-engineer scheduling flexibility, and shorter time to permit for quicker NTPs.

RF Engineer III - Project Manager; 1.5 yrs.
• Prepared and released coverage goals for new and replacement site locations in accordance with build

plan budgets. Sites chosen based on network performance KPI improvement requirements and Sales
team coverage expansion needs. Presented RF coverage to local boards for zoning permits.

• Served as New England North Design Team POC for cross-functional groups to meet deliverable
timeframes for On Air integration. Created RF plan for new sites and assisted project teams with site
integrations in line with customer growth expectations, service quality degradation, Sales team customer
specific requests, and budgetary constraints. Met service quality and coverage expansion needs in the
metro Boston area with emphasis on urban core and reduced network trouble tickets by 50% over 1 year
from customers in poorly served areas.

NEXTEL, (Converted to full time employee), Bedford, MA 2004-2005
RF Engineer II; 1 yr.
EXPERTWIRELESS SOLUTIONS, Vienna, VA 2003-2004
RF Engineering Consultant; 1 yr.
• Positioned, designed, and assisted permitting by 3"^ party site acquisition teams of new tower assets for

Nextel in NH, ME, and MA. Created interstate coverage footprint north of NH along 1-95 through to Bar
Harbor, ME and Manchester, NH through to Lake Winnipesaukee area increasing sales opportunities to
resort POIs.

• Reported in-field drive test analysis enabling service optimization for initial launch of Cingular's GSM
network in San Antonio, TX.

RF CONSULTING SERVICES, Marietta, GA 2001-2003
RF Engineering Consultant; 1.5 yrs.
• Implemented turnkey solutions for Cingular's dual band GSM conversion, including design, deployment,

and drive test optimization in Puerto Rico marketforon time launch of modemized network.
• Oversaw field-testing team responsible for beta testing in-house proprietary software tool for engineering

release. Trained and mentored drive test engineers fordata processing, coverage analysis, and frequency
allocation tool properties for productrelease to Cingular in two OH and the PR markets.

GALAXY ENGINEERING SERVICES, Alpharetta, GA 2000-2001
RF Design Engineering Consultant; 3 mos.

Proposed search locations in Northeast region forAmerican Tower's Build-To-Fill project.
Maximized potential interested carriers per towerfor preemptive site builds with shortest ROI.

RF Associate Engineering Consultant; 1 yr.

AWARDS

PerfectPerformance forachieving Bonus Level KPI performance supporting the Clean/vire network

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 4



JfW 06 '00 10:11 FR CORD COMMUNICATIONS 503 598 0700 TO 92775550
1/ 4/00 '> epvotrasita; Pug* s

01/04/00 IS:21 PaX 503 892 0812 CXrV OF TOAy^TT|̂

:J3
CITY OF TUAl-ATIISI

PO BOX 360
TUALATIN, OREGON 97062-0969

(503) 692-20fiO
TDD 692^0574

MEETING NOTICE FOR THE

CITY COUNCIL AND THE TUALATIN DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

FOR THE CITY OF TUALATIN

@002

MONDAY aanuaiy 10,2000

Mayor/Chairman Ogden; Counctlors/Commissbners Bargstrom, Cain, Chrisman,
Forrest, Lamb, Wellor

The Couhcii/Commlesion wQi meet for the work session
meetings at 6:00 p.m. on the second floor ofthe Coundl
Building and will meet for the regular meetings at
7:30 p.m. in the CouncilBuilding, Council Chambers.
18884 6W Martinazzi Avenue.

Asslstive Listening Devices for persons with impaired hearing can be scheduled
for this meeting by caH'ing 692*2000 (voloe) or 692-0674 (Text Telephone) no later
than 24 hours pnor to the meeting. The City will also upon request endeavor to
arrange for a qualified sign language fnterpieter for persons with speech or
hearing impairments. Since these services must be scheduled with outside
service providers, it is important to allowas much lead time as possible. Please
notify the City of your need by 6:00 p.m. Iwo woridng days prior to the meeting
date (same phone numbers as listed above): 692-2000 or 692-0574.

SEE ATTACKED AGENDA -

MTGi«:cwoiicE.coy

LOCATBD AT: 16880 SW NbrtlOBzzi Av«nu« Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 5



JfW 06 '00 105 11 FR CORD COWUNI CATIONS 503 598 0700 TO 92775550
. ftuceivect; 4/00 -> SpeerraajL-te; page s

.01/04/00 13:21 FAX 000 092 3512 CIT* OF TUALATIN

r.«30/xj

12)003

fj^jSgfrJAL CAl g^DAfi OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CnV OF TUALATIN

•I.efolknvrrtg is asurrtniaiy Ibsubb to come before the Coitficil atits regular session to be held on
wiinday. .teQuary id. 2000. at 7:30 p.m. In the Coundl Chambers.
Pfpcedure "("isttsrs wWch affect the general wel^ue of the entiro City rather
than a spedfie piece ofpiopetty.)
1 Open hearing andidentify subject
2, Review staff mporl receive testimony from thepublle. dose hearing orcontinue fbr further

• tostiinQny or htvesfigation,
3. Councilmdibn; approve, deny or continue.

Pfoeedufp tor Qyg^l^udiyfal ^^eaH^gs • (zone charges, vadartces, conditional usepermits,
comprehensive land changes, subdivision plats and land partitioning to comply with *'quasHudiclar
requirementsof Supreme Court ruKng.)
1. 'Open public hearing and Identify supiecl
2. Revi^ staff report; receive tesfimorty of proponents, testimony ofopponents, proponents* rebuttal:

cross examination follows each presentation; dose hearing or continue for further testimony or
investigation.

3. Coundl action: approve, deny or continue.

Time Limitsfor PubKcHeafinos - The purpoee of time llmltB on testimony is to provide all Interested
persons with an adequate oppartunity to present and respond to testimonywhileat the same time
ensuring that the hearir^ can be conducted In an efficient and timely manner, Afl persons providing
testtmony shall be limited to ifi minutes, subjectto the right of the Mayor to amend or waivethe time
fimits-

Resolution No. Begin with36^8-00
Ordinance No. Begin with ;i041«00

1. ANNOV.MC:SMgNTS

A. Howland Award Ceremony for Skate Park Development

B. Swearing-in of Reserve Police Offioem

2. OPEN MIKB - For matters notappearingelsewhere on the agenda. Matters requiring further
investigation or detailedanswers will be referred to Ctiy stafffCr follow-up and reportat a future
meeting. Please limit your eommenta to no more than 1 mlrtutee. Total time allocated to
OPEN MIKE Is 15 minutesat the beginning ofthe meeting, ff there 1$ in^Aiffldant timeto hear all
those wishing to speak, the OPEN MIKE will be continued to the end ofthe agenda

3- CONSENTagenda - Items marked with V are considered routine and arepart oftheconsent
agenda. The Items haye been discussed by theCoundl In work session. They win beadopted by
one motion unlessa Coundior or person in the audience requests, befbre the voteonthe motion,
to have an itemconsideredat its regularplaceon the agentito.

Acnohl ITEMS

A. PUBLK? HEARINGS - Qua^Uudidfll

1. Request

Applicant
She:

CUP-99-05—A Conditional UsePermit to Allow a Family Reereatfon
Center (Outdoor Aquatic Fadllty) ina Qaneral Commercial (CQ) Planning
District

DaleWiUlams, Vice-President. Leisure Sports, Ino.
18120 $WLower Boonee FenyRoad (2S1 24AB, 800,500 &501)

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 6



JRN 06 '00 105 11 l-H UUKD LLB-ttTmNlUiMUPa 3WJ XJIKKi lU
>7 a/uil ^DectrftQitej f*a0# 4

toi/04/00 IS;21 FAZ 503 892 3512 CITV OP TOALaTIw

ftmriALTALgMnAR OP THE TilAiJii-nN CITY COUNCIL FOBJANUARY10.2000 ...

A. Ptwnc HEARINGS - Quasi-Judiiaal {conOnuw/»om Page 1]

2. Request'. VAR-9d-02*<^A Variance from Section 60.090(4) toAllow a 130' High
Wirelesa Telecommunication Tower with 16' Antennae Where a 100* High
Support Structure andAntenna (fi Allowed ina Light Manufacturing (ML)

• Planning Ofstriet
Applicant: John Siienzi, Nextel Communicatione and Dan Bose. CHy ofTualatin

Operations Director
Site: 10699 SW Herman Road - Tax Map 2S1 22A, Tax Lot900

B. ftgCOMMSNDATIONS FROM CITYATTORNEY

0 1. Resolution No. ___ Granting a Variance to Allow a 10'Setbackof ICT Where 30'
is Required in a Light Manufacturing (ML) Planning District at
18075 SW BooneaFerryRoad (2S1 i3Ea 1900)(VAR-9d-
01)

Approving the Transferof the SolidWaste Franohieefirom
United Disposal Service Inc. and Keller Drop Box Service to
Allied Waste industries Inc.

Vacating a Portion of SWMarilyn Street and SW 112"
Avenue

Vacating a 30' Public Right-ofWay on SW Marilyn Street

Vacadng a Portion of SW 119** Avenue

Relating to Emergency Management; Delegating the
Authority to Adoptand Amend the Emergency Management
Plan to the CityManager; Amending TMC 1-7.020;
Repealing TMC1-7.030; and Rescinding Resolution No$.
1789-86,2714^2

Relatingto Northwest NaturalGas Franchise; Correcting a
Typographical Error; and Declaring an Emergency

c 2. Resolution No.

3. Ordinance No.

4. Ordinance No.

5. Ordinance No.,

6. Ordinance No,,

7. OfdinaneeNO.

(^004

—z2z

C. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PLANNING DIRECTOR . None Additional,

a RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CITY ENGINEER

c 1. Change Order No. 4 to the Contract Documents for the Construction of SW Tualatin
Road

o 2. AuthorizeCity Engineer to Apply for 124" Avenue / Portland &Western (SPRR) Railroad
Crossing Improvements

E. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CITV MANAfiPR

1. Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of November 22,1999 and December 13,1999

2. RBsoluticnNo, ApprovingAccounts Payable for Payment

3. Liquor License - New - Oregon Grape and Gourmet

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 7



JRN (db 'W iti VhUku cunrimiuiii luna ouo b^o aritKi lu ^e,f

'noCAlvad; 1/ 4/00 2i2BPMj GpecxraSitv} Page 6

01/04/00 15:22 FAX 503 802 3512 CITY OF TyAP^ftN

npciMAi CALEWnAR OFTHE-m^^ATlNCrrYCOIINCILFOR^UARY 1C1.2P0.Q

F. p«V>MMPMDATinMS FROM COMMUMTTV SERVICES DIRBCTOR

c 1. Authorization to Proceed with Phase Two of Park and Recreation DIatrict Feasibility
Study

G. RgCOMMENDATIONS FROM gCIgj^OMIC DEVELOPMENT PiRgCTQR

c 1. ftftgftUitifin MO. Authorizing Acceptance ofDeed ofDedication in Association
~ with theConstru^on ofSW124*' Avenue andSWLaveton

Drive

5. g^ecimv^ SESSION: The Tualatin City Council may goInto Executive Seeaion under the
provisions ofORS192.660 (l)(e)(D) to diacuse peisonnel; ORS192.660 (1)(d) to discuss labor

' relationd,' ORS 192L66Q (1)(e) todiscuss real properly transactions; orORS 102.660 (1)(h) to
discuss current andpending litigation issues. All discuasions within this sessionare confidential;
therefore nothing from thismeeting may be disdostd by thosepreeent Repreaentatives ofthe
newsmedia are allowed to'attend thissession^ butmustnotdisclose any |nformatiot> discussed
during this session.

6. CQMMUNlCATiQNS PROM COUNCILORS

l^OOS

-3

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 8



A«e*lv«dl 1/ 4/00 StSOPMi 8pootra8&to; Fope O

6i/0«/40 15: J2 FAI 509 092 9812 CITY OF TOaUTIW

r.At gMDAR OF THE TUALATIN neva-OPMEMT COMMISSICa!il.

Hfbllowins is asumma.y of issues to come before the Coiom^on to seesior, to be held on
Morrdey, jMVtoY 10, «t 7:30 p,m. in the Coundl Build««a CounOl)

Tirtfi Limttft tor Public Hearings -The purpose of time Kmita en. testimony fe to provide ail interested^wonswith
an adeduate opportunity to present arvd respond to testimony while at the same time ensuring
can be conducted in sm efllCient and timely manner. An peteons provldinj teethnony towB be limited to Jfi

wihj".* to the right ofthe Chairman to amend or waive the time limits.

1. ^WQUNCEMENTS

2 OPEN MIKE - For maiteia not appearing elsewhere on the agenda. Matters requiring further IrwestigadlonocdetaltedanswerswlilberelienadtoCityetaffforfblloviHipandiaporttoafuturerneetlng. Ptwalimit
your comments to ite more flwrni minutes. Total time allocated to OPEN MIK6 is is min^ at^
te^nning of the meeting. If there is insufficient time to hear all those wfehing to speak, tte OPEN MIKE vwli
be continued to the end of the egenda-

3. cqwseHT AQ^fsiDA • items marked with V are considered routine and are part of the consent agenda.
Theitems have beendiscussed by the Commission in work session. They will be adopted by orte motion
unless a Commissioner or person inthe audience requests, befbre thevote onthe motion, tohaveen item
considered at its regular placeonthe agenda.

4. ACTION rrSMS

^ A. PUBLICHEARINCS -None.
B. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM ECONOMIC PEVeLOPMENT DIRECTOR

c 1. ChangeOrderNo. 6 to the Contract Documerits forConstnidion ofSW124** Avenue/SW
Leveton Drive

e 2. Resoludon No. Authorizing Compensation for Dedication of Right-oMAfoy Associated
with Construction of SW124**Avenue and SW Leveton Drive

c 3, Resolution No. Authorizing Commenoament ofNegotiations to Acquire Rights-of-Way
and Easements for the SW 124** Avenue / SW Leveton Drive to SW
Myslony Street tmprovements

c 4. Resolution No. Approving a Certificafe OfCompletion for IVacts 60 and SD (VIIla& on the
lekB 111) at Tualatin Commons

C. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM ADMINISTRATOR

c 1, Approval of Minutes ofthe November 22,1999 meeting aikl December13.1999 meeiirtg

c 2. Approving Accounts Payable for Payment

5. EXECimvE SESSION: The Tualatin Development Commission may go into Executive Session under the• provisions of ORS 192.660(1)(8)(D) to dtscuss personnel; ORS 192.^0 (1)(d} to discuss labor relations;
0R8 192.660 (1)(e) to discuss real property transactions; or ORS 192.660 (1)(h)to discuss current and
pending litigation Issues. All discussions within this session are confidential; therefore nothing from this
meeting may be disclosed by those present Representatives of the raws media are allowedto aUsnd this
session, but must not disclose any information discussed during this session.

6. COMMUNICATIQNS FROM COMMISSIONERS
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 9



JftN 05 '00 hK UUKU LUHimNlUMI lUINO OOO D^a t3fti«3 IW ^c.ii^w.ww

R«ebi.v0Cli 1/ 4/0O 2;aePM; ->* Opoo^rftCite; roge 7

01/04/00 15:22 PAX 503 092 3512 CITY OF TUALATIN

City of Tualatin,Oregon
COUNQt agenda statement

Agenda Item No.Meeting Dale January10._200Q

Qtloo?

/I 2-

Kent Title

VAR^a^—AVARIANCE FROM SECTION 60.090(4)TO ALLOW A130' HIGH WIRELESS
TELECOMMUNICATION TOWER WITH Iff ANTENNAE WHERE AlOff HIGH SUPPORT
STRUCTURE AND ANTENNA ISALLOWED IN AUGHT MANUFACTURING (ML) PLANNING
DISTRICT AT 10699SW HERMAN ROAD ON TAX MAP ^S1 22A TAX LOT 900.

Pre>pared bv Jim Jacks Department Planning

EaaianaUen

Thisis a quasi*judiclal land use decision. This application requests a variance tothe allow a 130'
high wireless communication monopote tower and 16* antennaeonthe City ofTualatin Operations
Center property. The significant Issues of the proposal are:
• Nextei Communications (Nextel) seeks to expand its wireless communication network in the

Tualatin area and proposes to construct a wireless communication facility (monpofe tower,
antennae and equipment shelter) ona leased area ofthe City ofTualatin Operations Center.
Nextel is negotiating with the City ofTualatin to lease a 3,600$.f. area on the northeastcornerof
the property.

• The site is in a ML Planning District which allows a wireless communication facility as a permitted
• use. The ma)dmum allowed height is 100' in the ML District

The site is in an existing industrial area and located approximately 1.400* fiom residential areas
north of $W Tualatin Road. On the site Is grove of 100' -120' high conrfer trees. The site was
Chosen for Its location in an industrial area, distance firom residential areas for the buffering
that the tall trees would provide for a tower and antennae.
Because the radio signals to and from the antennae are blocked by trees and limbs, the proposed
monopoie tower and antennae must be taller than the nearby treePvThls variance is needed to
allow the antennae to be a height of up to 14ff and be higher than the 100*^120' trees.
Locating the tovwer and arttennae in the grove of trees will screen and buffer the facility from
nearby properties. NoInjury to adjoining properties is anticipated.The proposed facility will
require the removal of six conifers so tfiat the tower and equipment shelter be constructed.

Aiyiicant: JohnSiiefgi, Nextel Communications and Dan Boss, City ofTualatjn Operations Dir.

Soeeiai Isauea

The statutory120^dayvdilch a decision mustbe made is March 28,2000. Thisheanng is on day 42.

StateiTM^^ Not applicable Account Ne. Not aDPllcabfe

Rseommendatlon Staff recofrvnends the City Council adopt the staff reportand direct staff to
prepare a resolution granting VAR-99-02, withthe followingoondltion;
1. The monopoie tower, antenna platform and whip antennae shall not exceed 146 ft inheight >
ibove grade.

Not applicable

Attachmefita (Listed Below)
Staff Report 1)Applloant's Reasons. 2)Vldnity Map &Site Plan. 3)Elevatlons. 4^Photo Simulation

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 10



JRN ^ 'kJW IW-'U hK LUKU UJnnUNlCHI lUNb iJisW syu aripo »u

. ^eo«iv*d; 1/ A/OO CsSOPM| -> fip9«tr*«0i,«o; Pag* a

pX/04>00 XS:aa PAI SOJ 492 3S12 CITV OF TOAUTtM

CITY OP TUAUATIN
po BOX a«fi

TUALXtlN, OneOOM 9706^M69
($01) 692*2600
TDD 692-0574

Januaiy 10,2000

CityCouncil ,
City ofTualatin

Members of the Council:

Qoog

4 2

ISC
VAR-99-02--A variance FROM SECTION 60.090(4)10 ALLOW A

HIGH WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION TOWER WITH Iff ANTE!
WHERE A100' HIGH «» qxdi inti ine Aian antipmwa

Iff ANTENNAE

AT 10699 SW HERMAN ROAD ON TAX MAP 2Sl 22A TAX LOT 900

BEOygSI

On November 2B, 1993, the City ofTualatin reoelvad an application for a variance request
from Sections 60.090(4) of the Tualatin Develppment Code (TDC) to allow a 130 foot
wirelesscommunication monopoie tower with up to 16 ft of antennae fora totalhei^ ofS> to 146 ft. The proposed site Is a3,600 square foot lease area on the Cft^Tu^atin

perationaCenter subject property located inthe Llfiht Mamifacturlng (ML) Rlenntng
District at 10699 SW Hennan Road.

AppycAKT^ RSASQNS

The applicants reasons and supporting matenal are made a part of this staff report
(Attfinhment 1).

BACKGROUND

The co-applicants are Jottn Silenzl representing Naxtel Communications (Nextel)and Dan
Boas, Cityof TualatinOperations Director. Ne>dEet seeks to expand Itswireless
communication network (Enhanced Specialized Mobile Radio, ESMR) coverage inthe
western area of Tualatin, Tigard and King Cityand along the t-5 corridor. NemI identified
the OperationsCenter property at 10699 SWHerman Road as a prospective wireless
site, the Operations Center site offers a location for a wreless facility inan Industrial area

loa
signal _ _ , . ^ ^
(approximately) tall conifers (primarily Douglas FID that provide a natural buner and
screen for a monopoie from nearby properties, public streets end residential areas
(Attac^ents 1-4).

ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE TO PROVIDE THESE MATERIALS IN ALTERNATIVE
FORMATS, SUCH ASLARGE TYPE ORAUDIO CASSETTE TAP&'PLEASE CONTACT THE
PLANNING DEPARTMENT AND AUOW AS MUCH LEAD TIME AS POSSIBLE

LOCATSD AT: 18660 SW MartingiZZl AvenV#Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 11



JRN 06 '00 10J13 FK COKD CUMTIUNICHI lUNb Sbb iu
1/ 4/O0 2:20PM; •> SpwcrraOixe; Page 8

.01/04/00 13:23 FAX 603 692 3512 filTY OF TUALATIN @009

VAR-96-02— Variance to allow a 146ft Wiralesd Communication To^ In a ML District
January 10« 2000
Page 2

into negotiations with the C1^ of Tualatin to tease a 3.600 si. (60^ x
cant northeastcomer of the Operations Canterproperty fora tower.

Nextel has entered
60') area on the vacant,.w.
equipment shelter, landscaping, security fencing end access forconstruction and
maintenance. The City as the landowner desires to retain the large conifertrees on the
subject portion ofthe OperaUons Center pn^r^ and requires that development such as
the proposed communications faolity disturb as few conifer trees onthesiteas possible.
The applicant statesthat wireless RF signals must travel In anunobstructed path firom the
fadlity \o the user. Becausethe lower and antennae are proposed to be located In the
grove of 100^-120' tall conifers andtheCi^ as foe propei^owner doesnot wish to have
foe otistitx^ng trees removed, foe antennae mustbe ait a height greater than the height of
the neighboring trees (with consideration ofthefuture growth offoe trees).

The applicant was informed in pre-application meetings thata variance would be needed
to allowa wireless communicanon support structure and antennae greater than 100' in
height[as per TDC 60.090(4)]. Architectural Review offoefacility including tower design,
access, fencing, tree preservation and landscaping is required following variance
approval. Tomeat foe siting andengineering requirements tor a wireless facility at this
location. Nextel proposes a 130ft monopole structure with three 16ft omni whip
antennae attached at foe top of the monopole. In addition to the proposed omni antennae,
futureexpansion may also Include two 6 tl. diameter microwave dishes, and twelve 5'
panel antennae located on a platform at the topoffoe tower (Attachment 3).The submittal
showsthat sixconifers are proposed forremoval to allow construction offoe tower. The
remaining50 or more trees infois portion of the propertywouldnot be disturbed.

ANALYSIS AND PIMDINGS

1. Variance Criteria: Section 33.020 of the TDC authorizes foe City Council to grant a
variance from me requirements of the Code when Itis shown tli^ owfr»to special
and unusual circumstances related to a specific piece of property, foe literal
interpretation of foe ordinance would cause an undue hardship. Ingrantinga
variance, the CityCouncil m^ attach conditions that Itfinds necessary to protect the
best interestsofthe surrounding property and to meetfoe purposes ofthe Code.

No variance shall be granted by foe City Council unless it can be shown that
criterion (1) is -metand three of foe four approval criteria (2)-(6) are met The burden
is upon the applicant to demonstrate that eadh of the following criteria exist

in

(2)

(3)

Ahardship is created byexceptional or extraordinary conditions applying to the
property thatdo notapply generally to otherproperties in foesame planning
distnct or vicinity, and foe conditions are a result of lotsize or shape,
topography, or other physical circumstances applying to foe property over
which the applicant or owner has no control.

The hardship does not result fosm actions offoe applicant, owneror previous
owner, or from personal circumstances such as age or financial situation of the
applicant, or from regional economic conditions.

The variance is necessary for the preservationofa property right offoe
applicant or ownersubstantially foe same as is possessed by owners of other
property in the same planning district or vicinity.

The variance shall not be detrimental to the applicable o^ectlves of the
Tualatin Community Plan and shall not be injurious to property in the planning
district or vicinity In which foe property is located.

The variance is the minimum remedy necessary to alleviate the hardship.

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 12



Boooi>v«ids A/OO 2i40PMj ®poa'tra®S--toi Page 10

01^4/od lSt23 FAX 603 602 3512 CITY OF TUALATIN 1^010

VAR-96-02—Variance to allowa 146ft. Wireless Communication Tower In aML District
January 10,2000
Page 3

Ahardship is created byexceptional orexjtraordinary.oondi^s
" 2t do not appVgerverally to otherproperties mthe same

Planning ousmci vr viwiiuj* andHn© conditions ana a r^ult of lot or®h6pe,
tepogr^hy, or other physical circumstances applying to tha property over which the
appll^nt orowner has no control

Nextel Identifies the hardship as the existing conifer treeson^ oparations Cotter

1^1 (1^19 9IUP III vrc ivi^ r ivi II Ml vivifies* www « •^— ..^w—... pOltlOn
OfTualatinto expand and impfove the necessary oommunicatlon network coverage
in the Tualatin, Tigard and King CHy ^ea. Both Nexiel and (heCity ofTualatin
desire to locate a raciii^ such as the proposed telecommunicattons towerand
antennaa in an industrial area and in a locationthat minimizes visual Impactson
residential areas. Wireless ^lilies such as Naxtel utllizee area peimitt^ use in
the ML and MQ (General Manufacturing) Planning Districts H'DC 60.020(39),
61.020(1)1, but are restricted inlesidemiat planning districts inTualatin. Siting the
facillfy inan Indostrial area such as tha ML district is the preferred location.

TheOperations Center siteoffers a location thatwith theproper height will provide
an adequate r^io frequency (RP) signal coverage in this geographic areaandIs
located in an inekistrial area apprmmately 1.400 ft. or more ftomfesidential
areas north ofTualatin Road.The importance of locating the faoiiity in an industrial
district with1,400 ft of distance to the nearest residential property is an exceptional
drcui^ance that applies to the property.

Another reason why this cellular tower needs to be 146 feet la outlined in the Project
Description se^iort oftheapplication (Attachmeni 1.pp. 2-3). Nextel explains that
'Hie design of a specific ESMR site isftirther refined by considering loc^
topograpnic and geographicfiactors, tree canopy, waterbodies and the ability to
mitigate the antenna supportstructure's visual irrbact, oompatibirity ofthe facility
with existing u8e8,...*(Attachment 1 pg. 3). With these and other technical factors
evaluated bythe ^plicanfs engineers, Nextel Indicates thatthe 130foot tall
monopole (and antenna) at this site is the minimum necessary to provideadequate
itadio coverageto the surrounding area. Staff agrees that exi^'ng elevation and
presence of trees at this site present a hardship and Is an exceptional circumstance.

The grove of 100-120' tall conifers on the sHe provide a natural buffer and screen
for a telecommunication facility (Sm Attachment 4, Photo simulation of the proposed
tower siting inthe treegrove). Tall trees such as on the subjectproperty will obscure
the tower and visuallymitigatethe lower and antennae for persons viewing itftom off
site and ffom residential areas to the north. With the benefit of the trees comes the
hardship imposed by trees interfering with a RF signal and by the need to have a
direct "line of sight" from the antenna to the wirelessuser. Afacility located in the
vicinity of trees such as the Operations Center grove must be taller than the 100'-
120' tall trees to operate effectively. The applicant states ftiatthe height ofthe trees
makes it Impossible to build a monopole and anienna within the 100* height limit.
The height of the trees Is an exceptional cfrcumstanoe and creates the f^ship.

Only a few of the properties in the ML or MG Districts in the western areas of
Tualatinhave a giove oftall conifers such as exists on the sdsject property. To
locate the facilityon a treeless site would forgo the visual buifering that the trees
would provide for a tower and antenna structure. The Clly of Tualatin i$ a Tree City
USA" and as the property owner is guided by policies for preserving trees in TDC
Chapters 15,73 and 74 and the (Dperations Center Master Plan. Removal of the
grove of trees to facilitate a development such as the proposed Nextel facility and

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 13



JfiN 06 '00 10-14 FR CORD COmUNlCHTlDNS 503 KJrWb lu
M9c«ivoa; 1/ 4/O0 &iQ6PHi •> QpdCtrasit*; Pago

.01/04/00 XS:24 PAX 603 602 3S1S CITV OF TOaUTIN laoii

A-.2-
VAR-96-02— Variance to allow a 146ft Wifeless Communication Tower in a ML District
January 10,2000
Page 4

avoid a variance fOr increase strudurehctoht is nota responsible ordesiratile
solutionfdr trie City as a properly ovwner. the physical drcumstances of needing an
unobstructed signal from a wirelesslower and the requirement for retaining the
grove oftrees are notinthe oonlrol ofthe applicant orpropertyowner.

To minimise disruptions to trafRo circulafion and other current or planned activities
on the operations Centersite, the facility needs to tie locatedon the northeastern
most edgeof^e property. 8taff agrees thatthe requested location onthesitewould

the least disruptive to the existing and planned operations activities on the site.

The property has exceptional or extraordinary conditions due to the need to locate
the wirelessfacility inan industrial district and removed firom residential areas and
the physical circumstences ofthe 110'-120 tall conifsr trees on the sHe. The
condition does not apply generally to other properties in the vicinity or in the ML
Planning District.

Criterion "1" Is met.

Criterion 121. The hardship does not result from actions of the ansiicanL owner or
^evieus owner, orfrom personal circumstances suchas age ornnancial situation of
the applicant, or from regional economic conditions.

The applicant indicates that no hardship was created by the applicant, owner or
previous owner and Isa resultofthe natural physical conditions on the site
(Attachment 1, pg. 5). The 100'-120' tail trees on the site prevent building the tower
within the 10v height limit

Staff agrees that the topography of the area and treba on this site require a tower
greater than the 110-120' heightand are responsible fbr the applicant's need fbr a
variance from the height requirements of the TDC. The hardship is not a result of
personal oircumstancefi or financial situation of the applicant or owner. Regional
economic conditions are not a factor in this proposal.

Criterion "2" Is met

Criterion (31. The variance Is necessary for the preservation of a property right of
the applicant or owner substantiallythe-same as is possessed by owners of other
properV the same planningdlstnci or vicinity.

The property is in the ML Planning District Surrounding properties and uses are:

ML, Crystal LiteManufacturing
ML, Jana's Cookies
ML, Airefco
MQ, Kern Equipment Marshall Associated Industries (Across SW Herman Rd.
and the SPRR tracks)
ML. Dot Storage
ML, Contractors Offices (Across SW 108°^ Avenue)

The applicant Indicates the variance is necessary because Nextel would be denied
the rightto operate a wireless facility that is permitted 1^ other property owners in
the ML district (Attachment 1. pg, 5). The applicant states that me maximum
structure height in the MLdlstnci must be ^cceeded "...so that the antennas can
transmit in an unobstructed path free and dear of the surrounding trees."

N:
E:

S;

W.

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 14



wo ww Awx-» in wxjib iui>in-M I IUND DWO vxikj iw ^6.1,

, A«cei.v#d: 1/ A/00 aisiPMj •> SpaetraaiTOi 1£

01/04/00 18:24 FAX 503 692 3512 CITX OF TUALATIN td0i2

VAR-96-02^V«rianee to allowa146ftVWretess CommunicationTomhw in a ML District
January 10,2000
Paged

AwirelMS facility I9 allowd ^ a Mrmitted use jn Wjj
v^reless f^lities in the vicinity of the rnpos^ Ne)del site attttis

•sK&iss^">SmStssssiXp!:&isS^^
a substantial reason for locattng on the Operations Center property and not locating
some^ere else in^e ML District

This variance is necessary to preserve the oMSier's property right the sameas
l^ovlded to other prof^rty owners in the ML District

Criterion "3" is met

Criterion (4). The variance shall not be detrimenlal to the applicable ohjectivas of
theTualOTn Community Plan and shall not be to property inthe planning
district or vicinity in which the property is located.

Theapplicant chose not toaddress Criterion M' in the apprication materials.

The objectives for Wireless Communieation Facilities inTDQ Ct^apter 8, Public,
SemH^lic and Misoetlanaous Land Uses (TDC 8.080) include;
(1) To minimize thevisual Impacts associated wireless communication facilities.
(3) To provide a wide rangeoflocatfons for wirelese communication facilities.
(3) To encourage creative approadids in locatlitg wireless comrnunication facilities

that will blend with their surroundings.

5.

e.

The location and siting ofthe proposed Nextel tower will minimize the visual impact

facility.

Criterion "4" is met,

Crttenqn 15), The veriance isthe minimum remedy necessaryto alleviate the
hard^lp.

The applicant states "At this location, the height of the existing trees Is the reason
why Naxtei la asking fora v^'ance to exceedthe height limit The proposed 146' is
the minimum height required to provide adequate radiocoverage to the surrounding
area," (Attadvnent 1, pg. 5).

Staffhas inspectedthe site and reviewed USGS topographic maps to determine If a
height of teas than 146* is workable. The sHo'sbase elevation is approximately 13SV
The applicant indicatesthat the heightof the trees is approximatety 10O'-i 20*. The
area north of the site north of SW Tualatin Road has a ground elevation of
approximately 165'-170'. The higherareas southeast and east of the site in the
vicinity of do^town Tualatin have a ground elevationof 190'-260'.With the existing
height of the trees inthe Operations Center grove at lOO'-l 2(7, the towerand
antennae must be taller than the 100* maximum requirement of TDC 60,080(4).

The elevation drawings show a 130' monppole and antennae up to a height of 146'.
(Attachment 3). The drawings showthe tr^s at heightsof up to 120', accounting for
a slow increase In height withfuture growth (Attachment4). Staff agrees the
monopole arvdantennae must be higher than the trees for future growth. Given the

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 15



JHIS * CTO jnii* io r»v tt iw * wi w

Roo»±ved: 1/ 4/oa 2:3ipM:

Ol/ol^/o<) 15:24 FaZ 508 062 85X2
-> SOAetr«aa.te| Paa« IS

CITY or TUAUTIN @018

VAR-9M2— Variance to allow a146ft Wireless Communication Tower in a ML District;
Jgnuory 10, 2000
Page 6

trees anTestimated at l00'-12Cr in height the proposed 1 height isthe minimum
necessary. To satisfy this criterion, the monopole toww. antenna platfCmn and whip
antennae shall not exceed146It. inheightaoove grade.

Criterion "5" is met.

7 Based upon the application and at^vefindings and analysis, the approval criteria of
Sec«on^.020 havebeenmet

pg^^QMMENDATJON

Staff recommends the Council adoptthe staff report wd direct staff to preparea
resolution granting VAR-99-02 with thefollowing condition:

1. The monopole tower, antenna platform and whip antennae shall not exceed 146 ft. In
heigM above grade.

ReyeetMiy submitted

William Hafpdfir, AICP
Associate Planner

Attachments; 1. /^licanfs Supporting Materials
2. ViciniW Map and Site Wan
3. Elevation Drawings
4. Photos of Simula^ Tower Elevations

c; John Silenzi. Westower Communications

file: VAR-99^

A'2

** TOTRL PAGE,13

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 16



PLUMBING;

SITE UTILITIES:

CITY OF TUALATIN
PO BOX 369

TUALATIN, OREGON 97062>O369
(503) 692-2000
TDD 692-0574

illj

I. All non-metallic uodeigroimd yard p^lng,shall have an 18gauge orheavier tracer wire
along pipe intrench, green for sanitary and storm water piping. UPC 718.2 & 1106.1.
blue forwatermainservice p^ing, UPC609.5.1

Z Ppng fi>r storm and sanitaxy sewer drainage shall beofapproved materials withia 5"of
buildings including porches and steps whether covered or not UPC 1104.1 and 718.3

3. Building sewer and storm piping shall beruninpractical alignment ata unifi>rm slope-
ofV4'' perfoot, vtee it iskqnactical toobtain a V*" perfoot slope, pipe grade maybe
leduc^ to 1% or 1/8" per foot upon request to the Building Dept. UPC 708.0

4. Catch Basins shall be^ch type. Instandard 24^* catch basfos outlets are to bea
xmodmum of6*\ if larger outlets arerequired, a drawing and specification shah be
submitted to theBuilding Dept fori^proval. UPC -1108

CITY OF TUALATIN

APPROVED PLANS
PPPMiTMn <50-444- DATE

ADDRESS: .

ABPpnumBV- IJUL^ _

This drawing is to be kept on
the Building Site at ail times

LOCATED AT: 18660 SW MartinazzI Avenue

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 17



a- Exhibit "A"

CITY OF TUALATIN
PO QOX 369

TUALATIN, OREGON 97062*0369
(503) 692-2000
TDD 692-0574

NOTICE OF ADOPTION

On January 24,2000, the City ofTualatin adopted Resolution #3672-00 (File No.

VAR-99-02) granting a varianceto allow a 130' high wirelesstelecommunication tower

with 16' antennawherea 100' high supportstructure and antenna is allowed ina light

manufacturing (ML) planning district at 10699 SW Herman Road (281 22A, 900). A

copy of the resolution is enclosed for review.

Acopy ofthe resolution isalso available for review at the Tualatin Planning
Department located at 18884 SW Martlnazzi Avenue from 8 a.m. to 12 noon and from

1 to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday.

Appeal of land use decisions iscommenced by filing a Notice ofIntent to^peal with
the Land Use Board of Appeals as provided in ORS 197.830 to 197.845. the notice
of intent to appeal a landuse decision must be filed no laterthan 21 days afterthe

date the decision sought to be reviewed becomes final.

Date notice mailed: January 28, 2000

c: //Sean Bell, NEXTEL Communications, 8405B SWNimbus Avenue, Beaverton OR 97008

Daniel J. Boss, Operations Director, City ofTualatin, PC Box369,Tualatin OR 97062-0389

File: VAR-S9-02

10699 SW Heiman Road

LOCATED AT: 18880 SW MartlnazzI Avenue

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 18



EKhibit "B'

RESOLUTION NO. 3672-00

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A VARIANCE (VAR.99-02)TO
ALLOW A 130' HIGH WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION
TOWER WITH 16' ANTENNA WHERE A 100' HIGH SUPPORT
STRUCTURE AND ANTENNA IS ALLOWED IN A LIGHT
MANUFACTURING (ML) PLANNING DISTRICT AT 10699 SW
HERMAN ROAD ON TAX MAP 2S1 22A. TAX LOT 900.

WHEREAS a public hearing was held before the City Council of the City
of Tualatin on January 10,2000, upon the application of Nextel Communications
and the City ofTualatin,fora variance from TDC 60.090(4) to allow a 130' high
structure and 16* antenna in a Light Manufacturing (ML) Planning District at
10699 SW Herman Road (Tax Map 281 22A, Tax Lot 900); and

WHEREAS notice of public hearing was given as required by the Tualatin
Development Code by posting the notice In two public and conspicuous places,
which is evidenced by the Affidavit of Posting, marked "Exhibit A", attached and
Incorporated by this reference, and by mailing a copy of the notice to property
owners located within 300 feet of the property, which is evidenced bythe
Affidavit of Mailing, marked "Exhibit B," attached and Incorporated by this
reference; and

WHEREAS the Council heard and considered the testimony and evidence
presented on behalf of the applicant, the Citystaff, and those appearing at the
public hearing; and

WHEREAS based upon the evidence and testimony heard and
considered by the Council, the Council makes and adopts as its findings of fact
the Citystaff report, dated January 10,2000, which is marked "Exhibit 0,"
attached and incorporated by reference; and

WHEREAS after the conclusion of the public hearing the Council vote
resulted in approval of the application with ail Councilors voting in favor, and all
Councilors present; and

WHEREAS based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact the Council finds
that the applicant has provided sufficient evidence to demonstrate that all of the
requirements of the Tualatin Development Code relative to a variance have been
satisfied and that granting the variance is in the best interest of the residents and
inhabitants of the City, the applicant, and the publicgenerally.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
TUAIATIN. OREGON, that:

Resolution No. 3672-OQ - Page 1 of 2

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 19



#

Section 1, Nexte! Communications and the City of Tualatin are granted a
variance to allow a 130* high wireless telecommunication tower with 16" Antenna
at10699 SW Herman Road in a Ught Manufacturing (ML) Planning District, also
described onthe records ofWashington County Department ofAssessment and
Taxation as Tax Map 2S1 22A, Tax Lot900.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 24"' day of January 2000.

CITY OF Oregon

Mayor

ATTEST:

Bv
City Recorder

Resolution No. 3672-00 - Page 2 of 2

A

Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 20



Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 21



Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 22



308345 700 MHz LTE Coverage: 
 @ 150 ft. with NO Tree Clutter 

1 
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 23



308345 700 MHz LTE Coverage: 
 @ 110 ft. with NO Tree Clutter 

2 
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 24



308345 700 MHz LTE Coverage: 
 @ 110 ft. with Tree Clutter 

3 
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 25



308345 2100 MHz (AWS) LTE Coverage: 
 @ 150 ft. with NO Tree Clutter 

4 
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 26



308345 2100 MHz (AWS) LTE Coverage: 
 @ 110 ft. with NO Tree Clutter 

5 
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 27



308345 2100 MHz (AWS) LTE Coverage: 
 @ 110 ft. with Tree Clutter 

6 
Attachment A- Exhibit A pg 28



!(

Tualatin Operations Cell Tower site

SW Herman Rd

S
W

108 th
Ave

S
W

T e
to

n
Av

e155'

Attachment A- Exhibit B pg 1



Attachment B pg 1



Attachment B pg 2



Attachment B pg 3



Attachment B pg 4



Attachment B pg 5



Attachment B pg 6



RF Usage and Facility 
Justification

Durham

Prepared by Verizon Wireless Walid Nasr

Nov 20, 2017

Attachment B pg 7



Coverage with Proposed Durham Site

Durham

Area of concern 

Attachment B pg 8



Coverage at ATC location at 146’ with trees 

Durham

Area of concern 

Attachment B pg 9



Coverage with Durham Site at ATC 146’ without trees 

Durham

Area of concern 

Attachment B pg 10



Coverage at ATC 120’ without trees

Durham

Area of concern 

Attachment B pg 11



Summary

• ATC tower does not work at 146’ with the existing tree cover.
• With the trees removed the ATC tower using both 146’ and 120’ 

heights will function but the area of concern is better covered with the 
proposed Durham location at 100 feet.

• ATC tower doesn’t improve coverage in the residential area north of 
SW Tualatin Rd compare to proposed Durham tower location which is 
the area of concern.

Attachment B pg 12



ATC King City OR1 308345
onsite verification of trees 11/17/18

• The trees affecting the RF signal are in three main areas

• The grove surrounding the tower. 

• The grove to the West / Southwest

• The tree line to the North / Northeast on the adjacent property 

• The affected trees are approximately 120-140 feet tall

• There are approximately 40-60 trees in the three areas shown

Attachment B pg 13



ATC 130’ 

Tower

Tall Tree Line 

Blocking Signal

Tall Tree Groves 

Blocking Signal

1

2

Attachment B pg 14



Looking North from ATC gate, along the 

fence line at tree grove

Attachment B pg 15



Looking West / Southwest from ATC Site 

at the tree grove

Attachment B pg 16



Looking South / Southeast from ATC Site 

at the tree grove

Attachment B pg 17



Looking East / Northeast through the 

ATC Site at the tree grove

Attachment B pg 18



Looking North from adjacent property  

at the tree line and tree grove (position 1)

ATC 130’ 

Tower

Attachment B pg 19



Looking Southeast from adjacent property 

at the tree line and tree grove (position 2)

ATC 130’ 

Tower

Attachment B pg 20



From: Bloom, Aaron Aaron.Bloom@lendlease.com
Subject: FW: [EXT]:RE: PI Tower: 10290 SW Tualatin Road

Date: November 21, 2017 at 11:58 AM
To: Sarah Blanchard sarah.blanchard@acomconsultinginc.com

	
	
Aaron Bloom
Area Business Development Director
Telecom Infrastructure
12830 SW Park Way, Portland, OR 97225
T 503 880 4940 
aaron.bloom@lendlease.com | www.lendlease.com

	
From:	Brown,	Julio	[mailto:Julio.Brown@T-Mobile.com]	
Sent:	Tuesday,	November	21,	2017	11:47	AM
To:	Bloom,	Aaron	<Aaron.Bloom@lendlease.com>
Subject:	RE:	[EXT]:RE:	PI	Tower:	10290	SW	TualaOn	Road
	
He	confirmed	what	I	had	relayed	to	you.	There	was	no	communicaOon	to	ATC	that	said	we	were
going	to	locate	on	their	tower.
	
As	you	know,	that	tower	has	major	issues	(buried	in	the	trees),	so	I	do	not	want	to	use	it.	While
there	has	been	a	suggesOon	that	it	could	be	extended,	there	is	no	guarantee	that	that	would
happen,	nor	a	specific	Omeline.	That	makes	it	an	inferior	candidate.
	
Julio	Brown
Sr.	RF	Engineer
T-Mobile	Portland
julio.brown@t-mobile.com
503-820-9337
	
From:	Bloom,	Aaron	[mailto:Aaron.Bloom@lendlease.com]	
Sent:	Tuesday,	November	21,	2017	11:37	AM
To:	Brown,	Julio	<Julio.Brown@T-Mobile.com>
Subject:	PI	Tower:	10290	SW	TualaOn	Road
	
Hi	Julio,
	
I	wanted	to	circle	back	with	you	to	see	if	you	had	a	chance	to	speak	to	Gurjeet	about	ATC’s
opposiOon	to	our	site,	and	claim	that	T-Mobile	prefers	their	locaOon.		Anything	you	can	provide
would	be	greatly	appreciated.		We	have	unOl	5	pm	tomorrow	to	submit	any	further	evidence
supporOng	our	zoning	applicaOon,	with	the	hearing	resuming	on	12/7.
	
Thanks	so	much	for	all	your	support	with	this!
Aaron

Attachment B pg 21

mailto:AaronAaron.Bloom@lendlease.com
mailto:AaronAaron.Bloom@lendlease.com
mailto:Blanchardsarah.blanchard@acomconsultinginc.com
mailto:Blanchardsarah.blanchard@acomconsultinginc.com
mailto:aaron.bloom@lendlease.com
http://www.lendlease.com/
mailto:julio.brown@t-mobile.com
mailto:Aaron.Bloom@lendlease.com
mailto:Julio.Brown@T-Mobile.com
Sarah
Highlight

Sarah
Highlight



Aaron
	
Aaron Bloom
Area Business Development Director
Telecom Infrastructure
12830 SW Park Way, Portland, OR 97225
T 503 880 4940 
aaron.bloom@lendlease.com | www.lendlease.com

	
 

This email and any attachments are confidential and may also contain copyright material of the Lendlease Group. If you are not the intended
recipient, please notify us immediately and delete all copies of this message. You must not copy, use, disclose, distribute or rely on the information
contained in it. Copying or use of this communication or information in it is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. Contracts cannot be concluded
with the Lendlease Group nor service effected by email. None of the staff of the Lendlease Group are authorised to enter into contracts on behalf of
any member of the Lendlease Group in this manner. The fact that this communication is in electronic form does not constitute our consent to conduct
transactions by electronic means or to use or accept electronic records or electronic signatures. Confidentiality and legal privilege attached to this
communication are not waived or lost by reason of mistaken delivery to you. Lendlease does not guarantee that this email or the attachment(s) are
unaffected by computer virus, corruption or other defects and accepts no liability for any damage caused by this email or its attachments due to
viruses, interception, corruption or unauthorised access. Lendlease Group may monitor email traffic data and also the content of email for the
purposes of security and staff training. Please note that our servers may not be located in your country. A list of Lendlease Group entities can be
found here.

Attachment B pg 22

mailto:aaron.bloom@lendlease.com
http://www.lendlease.com/
http://www.lendlease.com/OperatingEntities


November 22, 2017

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL: ahurd-ravich@tualatin.gov
Saalfeld
Griggs

City of Tualatin Planning Commission
Attn: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich

18880 SW Martinazzi Ave

Tualatin, OR 97062-7092

RE: PITower Development Project OR-Tualatin-Durham/10290 SW Tualatin Road
(Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B 000800) (VAR-17-0001)
Our File No: 00000-28543

Dear Ms. Hurd-Ravich and Honorable Planning Commissioners:

Thank you for giving me and my client an opportunity to appear before you last week. As you know^ I
represent American Tower Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Tower Asset Sub, Inc., a Delaware
corporation {"ATC), which owns a wireless communications facility located at 10318 SW Herman Road,
Tualatin, Oregon (the "ATC Tower"). ATC submitted oral and written testimony regarding its concerns
regarding the proposed wireless communication facility on behalf of Lendlease (US) Telecom Holdings

LLC - c/o PI Tower Development LLC, Verizon Wireless, and the property owner. Tote 'N Stow, Inc.
(herein collectively "Applicant") on the southwest corner of 10290 SW Tualatin Road, Tualatin, Oregon
(herein the "Subject Property"). I am submitting this letter and the attached exhibits to address certain
factual and legal questions of the Commissioners and staff. Below in italics are a summary of those
questions followed by my answers.

1. Can the ATC Tower accommodate additional users, if the tower was extended to 146 feet
consistent with the existing approval? Yes, ATC's existing variance approval granted a variance
to the wireless communications facility standard of 100 feet, subject to the following condition
of approval, which is the only condition of approval: "The monopole tower, antenna platform
and whip antennae shall not exceed 146 feet in height above grade." ATC has the right under
the existing permit to extend the tower to 146 feet without additional land use approval, so long
as there is no additional antenna extending beyond such height. Attached as Exhibit 1, you will
find supplemental RF coverage maps that demonstrate the ATC tower can accommodate new
uses in a manner substantially similar as represented by Applicant. Below are two images. The
first is Applicant's proposed coverage map demonstrating projected Verizon coverage. The
second is a coverage map by ATC demonstrating projected Verizon coverage on the ATC tower
at 146 feet, without cutting any trees.

Park Place, Suite 200
250 Church Street SE

Salem, Oregon 97301

Post Office Box 470
Salem, Oregon 97308

tel 503.399,1070

fax 503,371.2927

wvwv.sglaw.com
Attachment C pg 1



November 22, 2017

City of Tualatin Planning Commission
Page 2

Image 1 - Applicant proposed coverage map:

K]NQCfTY«5TA4m

SsV-a.--:" '

Image 2 - ATC proposed coverage map without modification of permit:

2. Can the ATC Tower structurally accommodate an extension of the exiting pole? Yes, ATC has
submitted a letter from Bryan Lanier, an Oregon licensed P.E., S.E., who is of the expert opinion
that the existing site can accommodate such an extension. See Exhibit 2.

3. What is the difference between green and yellow? The color coding corresponds to the

measurement of decibel-milliwatts as evidenced on the ATC RF maps (green equals greater or
equal to -75 dBm and yellow equals greater or equal to -85 dBm; however, the distinction
between green and yellow and how that relates to coverage on cell phones (i.e., how many

4849-3327-1638. v, 3 Attachment C pg 2



November 22, 2017

City of Tualatin Planning Commission
Page 3

bars?) is proprietary to Verizon. ATC cannot directly answer that question, and directs the
Commissioners and staff to Applicant for further information.

4. Who determines if the ATC Tower "cannot be modified to accommodate another provider" as
required under TDC 33.025(1)? Applicant has requested a variance to the City's Wireless
Communication Facilities development standards; therefore, it is Applicant's burden of proof to
satisfy all applicable criteria. Because Applicant's proposed tower is within 1,500 feet of the ATC
Tower, TDC 33.025(l)(a) requires Applicant to prove the ATC Tower "cannot be modified to
accommodate another provider." This burden of proof is not on ATC. Nonetheless, ATC has
reviewed Applicant's evidence and determined that it is not accurate. Applicant's error is due to
its false assumption that ATC could not extend its tower and could not accommodate an
additional provider. ATC has conclusively provided evidence that the ATC Tower can be
extended without an additional variance and it has the needed capacity. Therefore, Applicant
cannot meet its burden of proof, and the Commissioners must deny its variance request.

5. Are other carriers interested in using the ATC Tower? While this question is beyond the scope of
the criteria, ATC has correspondence from T-Mobile demonstrating interest in the ATC Tower as
a first option. See Exhibit 3. The attached correspondence demonstrates this interest. As ATC
has now demonstrated the ability to extend the ATC Tower above the tree-line, it believes it can
satisfy additional carrier coverage.

6. What are the terms of the ATC existing lease and proposed lease? Again, review of ATC's
existing lease is beyond the scope of review of Applicant's (Acom) evidence; however, in the
spirit of open communication, ATC has submitted a copy of the existing lease and proposed
lease amendment for the Commission's review. See Exhibit 4. Please note, the monetary terms

have been redacted and the proposed lease amendment is still subject to further changes by the
parties. To the extent the existing lease is relevant, it does substantiate ATC's representation
that the ATC Tower may be extended to the full 146 feet as there are no such restrictions on
ATC's right to "erect, maintain and operate on the premises radio communication facilities,
including without limitation an antenna tower or pole and foundation."

I believe this letter answers the Commission's questions. Please let me or staff know if ATC can be of
further assistance.

Based on ATC's prior written and oral testimony, this letter, and the attached exhibits, ATC requests the
Commission to deny Applicant's proposed variance request.

Thank you for your time and attention.

Sincerely,

'"^n'WI.Sorem
asorem@sglaw.com

Voice Message 0303

Enclosures

cc: Client

4849-3327-1638, v. 3 Attachment C pg 3



ta
b

b
ie

s'

P
m X z S H

3
0

8
3

4
5

7
0

0
M

H
z

L
T

E
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

@
1

5
0

ft
.

A
b

o
v

e
T

re
e

L
in

e

V
-

•4
^

,

-
m

C
Ir

:
R

S
R

P
(c

lB
m

)

•
>

--
7

5

I
>

=
-8

5

1
>

=
-9

5

A

Attachment C pg 4



CO

<D
U) CD
(0 C

CD
>
O

o

LU

N

ir>

CO
00
o
CO

0)
CD

(D
>
O

n

<

fi

<

0

J

f

Attachment C pg 5



3
0

8
3

4
5

7
0

0
M

H
z

L
T

E
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

@
1

1
0

ft
.

B
e
lo

w
T

re
e

L
in

e

t.
I
l*

1

C
Ir

;R
SR

P
(d

B
m

)

I
>

=
-8

5

>
=

-9
5

A

Attachment C pg 6



3
0

8
3

4
5

7
0

0
M

H
z

L
T

E
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

@
1

1
0

ft
.

T
re

es
P

ru
n

e
d

1
5

5
ft

.
R

ad
ia

ll
y

/
jT

C
Ir

;
R

S
R

P
(d

B
m

)

•
>

=
-7

5

I
>

=
-8

5

.'
H

>
=

-9
5

A

Attachment C pg 7



3
0

8
3

4
5

2
,1

0
0

M
H

z
(A

W
S

)
L

T
E

C
o

v
er

ag
e

@
1

5
0

ft
A

b
o

v
e

T
re

e
L

in
e

m

1
'

I

t

n

C
Ir

:
R

S
R

P
(d

B
m

)

•
>=

>-
75

I
>

=
-8

5

1
>

=
-9

5

A

Attachment C pg 8



3
0

8
3

4
5

2
,1

0
0

M
H

z
(A

W
S

)
L

T
E

C
o

v
e
ra

g
e

@
1

4
6

ft
A

b
o

v
e

T
re

e
L

in
e

C
Ir

:
R

SR
P

(d
B

m
)

>
=

-7
5

>
=

-8
5

I
>

=
-9

5

%
m

'9
^

A

Attachment C pg 9



0)
U)
(0

(D

> <U
O c

O

LU

CO

CM

lO

CO
00

CO

0)
0)

< "i
CQ

N

<

Attachment C pg 10



3
0

8
3

4
5

2
,1

0
0

M
H

z
(A

W
S

)
L

T
E

C
o

v
er

ag
e

@
11

0
ft

T
re

es
P

ru
n

ed
1

5
5

ft
.

R
ad

ia
ll

y

I
h

ft
ur

ha
m

*^
\

C
Ir

:R
S

R
P

(d
B

m
)

•
>

'-
7

5

I
>

--
8

5

m
>

'-
9

5

A

Attachment C pg 11



A
AvIsRICAN tow=r

Cantay Ozkan

American Tower Corporation

10 Presidential Way

Woburn, MA 01801

November 7, 2017

Arc Site: 308345 KingCity OR 1 (10318 SW Herman Rd, Tualatin, OR 97062-8841}

Tower: 130 ft. Monopole

Subject: Initial Structural Evaluation of Existing Tower

American Tower Engineering Services has completed an initial structural review of the above noted
tower. The purpose of this review was to provide a preliminary evaluation as to if the tower can
support T-Mobile and Verizon's newly proposed future equipment at the requested rad centers
pertaining to two different scenarios. Both scenarios will keep the existing Sprint Nextel equipment
and its corresponding rad height as existing at 130 ft.

Scenario 1: The existing 130 ft monopole to have a 20 ft proposed extension with Verizon obtaining a
new rad height of 150 ft and T-Mobile of 140 ft. Both carriers will have the following loading
scenario: (12) 8 ft panels and (12) RRU's on a platform w/ handrails.

Scenario 2: The existing 130 ft monopole to have Verizon obtain a new rad height of 120 ft and T-
Mobile of 110 ft. Both carriers will have the following loading scenario: (12) 8 ft panels and (12)
RRU's on a platform w/ handrails.

After review, the tower and foundation would be able to accommodate, structurally, both scenarios
per ANSI/TIA-222-G specifications. No structural upgrades to the tower or foundation, aside from
the extension, would be needed for either scenario.

Please contact the undersigned with any questions regarding this report at 919.466.5004.

OREGON

Cvirvr lini/VU

Nov 7 2017 2:26 PM cosign

Bryan Lanier, P.E., S.E. ^
Director, Customer Engineering

AMFRICAN TOWER CORPORATION

400 Regency Forest Drive, Cory, NC 2751 1 • ph: 919-468-0112 • fax: 919-468-8522

EXHIBIT

Attachment C pg 12



From: ^^JJJJJjT-Mobile.coml
Sent:7Tiureaay^ovenlDe^2^01^S?12 AM
To: Mike Qarke
Subject: RE: ATC# 308345 - King Qty OR 1

Hi Mike,

Thistower was my first choice but when we visited the location, we found it is surrounded by taller trees. We couldn't even
see tower from road except from one spot. Ifwe cando something about these trees, Iwould definitely like to go on this
tower.

Thanks

From: Mike Clarke [mailto:Michael.Clarke@americantower.com]

Sent: Thursday, November 02, 201710:04 AM

To:^J[^J[[J||^^[|@T-Mobile.com>
Subject: ATC# 308345 - King CityOR 1

1heard for outside source that you may be interested in this site area near Tualatin. Let me know if that is correct.

We have a 130' tower with plenty of space and capacity.
Lat/Long; 45.38597, -122.7853

EXHIBIT

3
Attachment C pg 13



SW Tualatin Rd

O'

9*1
V\et

Cook Pork

^ Tualabr} Country Club

SW Tualatin Rd .

TUALAflN
COMMONS

,oC^
Rd

andgeport

Durham

Tualatm
SNwNybefg ftc

Attachment C pg 14



Mike Clarke

Territory Manager - Business Deveiopment
Pacific Northwest, Alaska and Hawaii
American Tower Corporation
Carnation, WA
425-754-7533 Cell

michael.clarke@americantower.com

Find, Apply and Track Online with ON AIR Access.

Attachment C pg 15



PNW
0^-0146-5

COMMUNICATIONS SITE LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this ^3 dayof
, 2000 between Nextel West Corp., a Delaware

corporation, d/b/a Nextel Communications ("Lessee"), and the Cityof
Tualatin, Oregon, an Oregon municipal corporation ("City").

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Premises. City is the owner of a parcel of land (the "Land") located In the
City of Tualatin, County of Washington, State of Oregon, commonly known as
10699 SW Herman Road, Tualatin, Oregon 97062. The Land is more
particularly described In Exhibit A, which is attached. City hereby leases to
Lessee approximately 3600 square feet of the Land and all access and utility
easements, if any, (the "Premises"), described In Exhibits A-2 and B which
are attached.

2. Use. Lessee may use the Premises for permitted uses only ("Permitted
Uses"). Permitted Uses include any activity in connection with the provision
of communications services. City agrees to cooperate with Lessee, at
Lessee's expense, in making application forand obtainingall licenses,
permits and all other necessary approvals that may be required for Lessee's
intended use of the Premises. Subject to paragraphs 7 and 13 below,
Lessee agrees to permit other telecommunications providers to colocate on
Lessee's tower or pole provided the other telecommunications provider
enters into an Agreement with Lessee for the tower or pole space.

3. Tests and Construction. After the full execution of this Agreement, Lessee
may enter the Land at any time for the purpose of making appropriate
engineering and boundary surveys, inspections, soil test borings, other
reasonably necessary tests and constructing the Lessee Facilities, as
described in Paragraph 6(a). As provided for in paragraph 6 below, the City
may restrict or limit access to the Site when the City is operating its
Emergency Command Center.

4. Term. The term of this Agreement is five (5) years, commencing eighteen
months after full execution or upon the start of construction of Lessee
Facilities, whicheveroccurs first ("Commencement Date") and terminating on
the fifth anniversary of the Commencement Date (the "Term") unless
otherwise terminated as provided in Paragraph 10. Lessee has the right to
extend the Termfor three (3) successive five (5) year periods (the "Rej^ewal

EXHIBIT

1 ItAttachment C pg 16



PNW
OR-0146.5

Terms") on the same terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement.
This Agreement shall automatically be extended for each successive
Renewal Term unless Lessee notifies the City of its intention not to renew
prior to the commencement of the succeeding Renewal Term.

5. Rent.

(a) Upon the Commencement Date and on th<
thereafter, Lessee shall pay to City as rentI
("Renf). Rent for any fractional month at the oeginning or end of the
Term or Renewal Term shall be pro rated. Rent shall be payable to
City of Tualatin, at P.O. Box 369, Tualatin, Oregon 97062, Attention;
Operations.

(b)

6. Facilities; Utilities; Access.

(a) Lessee has the right to erect, maintain and operate on the premises
radio communications facilities, Including without limitation an antenna
tower or pole and foundation, utility lines, transmission lines, air
conditioned equipment shelters, electronic equipment, radio
transmitting and receiving antennas, supporting equipment and
structures ("Lessee Facilities"). In connection with these facilities,
Lessee may do all work necessary to prepare, maintain and alter the
Premises for Lessee's business operations and to install transmission
lines connecting the antennas to the transmitters and receivers. All of
Lessee's construction and installation work shall be performed at
Lessee's sole cost and expense, in a good workmanlike manner. Title
to Lessee's Facilities shall be held by Lessee. All of Lessee's facilities
shall remain Lessee's personal propertyand are not fixtures. Lessee
may remove all Lessee's Facilities at its sole expense on or before the
expiration or earlier termination of the Agreement; provided, Lessee
repairs any damage to the Premises caused by such removal. Upon
termination of this Agreement, Lessee shall not be required to remove
any foundation more than one foot below grade level.

(b) Lessee shall pay for the electricity it consumes in its operation at the
rate charged by the servicing utility company. Lessee shall obtain
separate utility service for its Facilities. City agrees to sign such
documents or easements as required by the utility companies to
provide services to the Premises, including the grant to Lessee or to
the servicing utility company at no cost to Lessee, of an easement in.

Attachment C pg 17



PNW
OR-0146-6

over, across or through the Land as required by the utility company to
provide utility service as provided in thisAgreement in a location
acceptable to the Cityand the servicing utility company.

(c) Lessee and the City shall work together to develop a system for
Lessee access that will maintain security of the Premises and the
Emergency Operations Center, when operating. Lessee. Lessee's
employees, agents, subcontractors, lendersand invitees shall have
access to the Premises 24 hours a day, 7 days a week at no charge.
City grants a non-exclusive right and easement for pedestrian and
vehicular ingress and egress across the portion of the Land described
in Exhibit B to Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors, guests and
invitees.

(d) The City shall maintain all access roadways from the nearest public
roadway sufficient to allow pedestrian and vehicularaccess at all times
under normal weather conditions. The City shall be responsible for
maintaining and repairing such roadway at its sole expense, except for
damage caused by Lessee's use of the roadways.

(e) Lessee agrees to retainan arborlst, approved by the City, to determine
tree type, health, growth potential and characteristicsof trees at the
Site that may be impacted bythe Lessee Facilities. This information
shall be used In the planning of the location of Lessee Facilities.
Lessor grants to Lessee permission to construct an access road from
(name of nearest public road) to the Premises (the "Access Road",
across Land owned by Lessor and adjacent to the Premises, as more
fully described in Exhibit B. Lessee will maintain the Access Road at
its sole cost and expense, except for any damages resulting from use
of the Access Road by Lessor, its agents, employees, licensees,
invitees, or contractors, and which costs to repair such damage shall
be Lessor's sole responsibility. Lessee agrees to workwith the City to
locate Its Facilities and Access Road in a manner that minimizes the
removal of and impact to existing trees. The timber value that results
from Lessee removing trees from the Land to construct and operate
the Lessee Facilities shall be agreed upon priorto removal and split
50/50 with the City.

7. Interference.

(a) Lessee shall operate the Lessee Facilities in a manner that will not
cause interference to the Cityor to Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
("TVF&R"). Lessee shall operate the Lessee Facilities ina manner
that will not cause interference to other lessees or licensees of the
Land, provided that the lessees' or licensees' installations predate that
of the Lessee Facilities and provided their operations are in
compliancewith all Federal Communications Commission ("FCC")
requirements. All operations by Lessee shall be incompliancewith all
FCC requirements.

Attachment C pg 18



PNW

OR-0148-5

(b) Subsequent to the installation of the Lessee Facilities, City shall not
permit its lessees or licensees to install newequipment on the Land or
contiguous property which is owned or controlled by the City, if such
equipment is likely to cause Interference with Lessee's operations.
Such interference shall be deemed a breach by City. Prior to the
installation of any new equipment by City, TVF&R, future lessees or
licensees, City agrees to provide Lessee not less than three (3)
months prior written notice along with any relevant plans and
specifications for Lessee's review. With respect to future lessees or
licensees, Lessee shall review such plans and give its approval,
request forchanges, or in the event significant interference Is likely to
result, its refusal to approve the plans. Lessee's approval of the
Equipment byother licensees or lessees (Tenanf) shall not be
unreasonablywithheld or delayed, but may be conditioned upon; (1)
receipt of technical information and documentation from the Tenant, by
Lessee, which may be reasonably needed in order to performan
analysis, and/or (ii) the implementation of specific measurers by
Tenant to assure that interference does not occur. Any such analysis
or consent by Lessee shall not constitutea warranty that Tenant's
Equipment shall not interfere with Lessee's operations. Both the City
and Lessee agree to cooperate and use best efforts in accommodating
any future lessees or licensees to the extent technologically feasible.
In the event interference occurs, City agrees to take all reasonable
steps necessary to eliminate such interference, ina reasonable time
period. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the City or the TVF&R
from installing, upgrading, or operating their current radio and
communication systems, or any future radio and communications
systems.

8. Taxes. Lessee shall pay all persona) and real property taxes on the Land
that are attributable to Lessee Facilities.

9. Waiver of Lessor's Lien.

(a) Lessorwaives any lien rights itmay have concerning the Lessee
Facilities which are deemed Lessee's personal property and not
fixtures. Lessee may remove such propertyat any time without the
City's consent.

(b) City acknowledges that Lessee has entered Into a financing
arrangement including promissory notes and financial and security
agreements for the financing of the Lessee Facilities (the "Collateral")
with a third party financing entity and may in the future enter into
additional financing arrangements with other financing entities. In
connection to these arrangements, the City consents to the Installation
of the Collaterai; disclaims any Interest In the Collateral, as fixtures or
otherwise; and agrees that the Collateral shall be exempt from

Attachment C pg 19



PNW

OR-0146-5

execution, foreclosure, sale, levy, attachment, or distress for any Rent
due or to become due; and that the Collateral may be removed at any
time without recourse by Lessee to legal proceedings.

10. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated without further liability on
30 days prior written notice as follows:

(a) by either party upon a default of a term of this Agreement bythe
other party which is not cured within 60 days of receipt of written
notice; or

(b) byLessee for any reason if Lessee delivers written notice of early
termination to the City no later than 30 days prior to the
Commencement Date; or

(c) by Lessee if It does not obtain or maintain any license, permit or other
approval necessary for the construction and operation of Lessee
Facilities, or

(d) byLessee if Lessee is unable to occupy and utilize the Premises due
to an action of the FCC, including without limitation, a take back of
channels or change in frequencies; or

(e) by Lessee if Lessee determines that the Premises are not appropriate
for its operations for economic or technological reasons, including
without limitation, signal interference; or

(f) by the City, any time after the completion of the second Renewal
Term, so long as City provides written noticeto the Lessee at least 60
days priorto the third Renewal Term.

11. Destruction or Condemnation. If the Premises or Lessee Facilities are
damaged, destroyed, condemned or transferred in lieu of condemnation.
Lessee may elect to terminate this Agreement as of the date of the damage,
destruction, condemnation or transfer In lieu of condemnation. If Lessee
chooses not to terminate this Agreement, Rent shall be reduced or abated In
proportion to the actual reduction or abatement of use of the Premises.

12. Insurance. Lessee, at Lessee*s sole cost and expense, shall procure and
maintain on the Premises and on the Lessee Facilities, bodily injury and
property damage Insurance with a combined single limit ofat least One
Million Dollars per occurrence. This insurance shall Insure, on an occurrence
basis, against all liability of Lessee, its employees and agents arising out of or
in connection with Lessee's use of the Premises. The City, its officers,
employees and agents shall be named as an additional insured on Lessee's
policy. Lessee shall provide a certificate of Insurance to the City evidencing
the required coverage within 30 days of the Commencement Date.

13. Assignment and Subletting. Lessee may assign this Agreement or the
Premises or any portion of the Premises to any entity, subject to the assignee
assuming all of Lessee's obligations under this Agreement. Upon

Attachment C pg 20



PNW

OR-0146'6

assignment, Lessee shall be relieved of all future performance, liabilities, and
obligations under this Agreement. Lessee may sublet this Agreement with
the written consent of the City, such consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed. This Agreement shall run with the property
and shall be binding upon and Inure to the benefit of the parties, their
respective successors, personal representatives, heirs and assigns.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary In this Agreement, Lessee may
assign, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise transfer without notice or
consent, its Interest in the Agreement to a financing entity or agent behalf of a
financing entity to whom Lessee has obligations for borrowed money or in
respect to guaranties for such obligations, has obligations evidenced by
bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, or has obligations under or
with respect to letters of credit, bankers, acceptances and similar facilities or
in respect to such guarantees.

14. Warranty of Title and Quiet Enjoyment. The City warrants that itowns the
Land in fee simple, has rights of access to the Land, and that the Land Is free
and clear of all liens, encumbrances and restrictions. The City has full right to
make and perform this Agreement and covenants and agrees with Lessee
that upon Lessee paying the Rent and observing and performing all the
terms, covenants and conditions on Lessee's part to be observed and
performed, Lessee may peacefully and quietly enjoy the Premises. The City
agrees to Indemnify and hold harmless Lessee from all claims on Lessee's
leasehold interest.

15. Repairs. Lessee shall keep Lessee Facilities in a reasonable state of repair
so that the Facilities are not unsightly or constitute a safety issue. If repairs
are needed. Lessee shall make them within a reasonable time. Except as set
forth In Paragraph 6(a), upon expiration or termination of this Agreement,
Lessee shall restore the Premises to the condition in which it existed upon
execution of this Agreement, reasonable wear and tear and loss by casualty
or other causes beyond Lessee's control excepted.

16. Hazardous Substances. Lessee agrees that it will not use, generate, store
or dispose of any Hazardous Material on, under, about or within the Land In
violation of any law or regulation. The City represents, warrants and agrees
that neither the City nor, to the City's knowledge, any third parly has used
generated, stored or disposed of, or permitted the use, generation, storage or
disposal of any Hazardous Material on, under, about or within the Land in
violation ofany law or regulation, and that the City will not and will notpermit
a third party to use, generate, store or dispose of any Hazardous Material on,
under, about or within the Land in violation of any lawor regulation. The City
and Lessee each agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other
and the other's officers, employees, and agents against ail losses, liabilities,
claims and costs, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs arising from
a breach of any representation, warranty or agreement contained in this

Attachment C pg 21



PNW

OR-0146-5

paragraph. As used in this Agreement, "Hazardous Material" means
petroleum or petroleum product, asbestos, any substance known bythe State
of Oregon to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity, or any substance,
chemical or waste that is identified as hazardous, toxic or dangerous in any
applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation. This paragraph shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

17. Miscellaneous.

(a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the parties, and supersedes alloffers, negotiations and other
agreements concerningthe subject matter contained in this
Agreement. Amendments to this Agreementmust be in writing and
executed by both parties.

(b) Itany provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable with
respect to any party, the remainder of this Agreement or the
application ofsuch provision to person other than those as to whom It
Is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected and each
provision of the Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

(c) This Agreementshall be binding and inureto the benefit of the
successors and permitted assignees of the respective parties.

(d) Any notice or demand required to be given In this Agreement shall be
made by certified or registered mall, return receipt requested, or
reliable overnight courierto the address of the parties set forth below:

Lessee: City: City of Tualatin
Nextel West Corp. 18880SW Martinazzi
d/b/a Nextel Communications Tualatin, OR 97062
1750 112"^ Avenue NE, Suite C-100 Attn: Operations Director
Bellevue, WA 98004

With a copy to:
Nextel West Corp.
d/b/a Nextel Communications
1750 112'" Avenue NE, Suite C-100
Bellevue, WA 98004
Attn: System Development Mgr.

And a copy to:
Nextel Communications, Inc.
2001 Edmund Halley Drive
Reston, VA 20191
Mail Stop 6E630
Attn: Site Leasing Services, Contracts Mgr.

Attachment C pg 22



PNW

OR-0146-5

Lessor or Lessee may from time to time designate any other address for this
purpose by written noticeto the other party. Notices shail be deemed received
upon actual receipt.

(e) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oregon.
(f) The City agrees to execute and record a Memorandum of Agreement,

attached as Exhibit C, in the official records of Washington County,
Oregon,

(g) Lessee may obtain title insurance on its interest in the Land. The City
shall cooperate by executing documentation required by the title
insurance company,

(h) Where the approval or consent of a party is required, requested or
otherwise to be given under this Agreement, such partyshall not
unreasonably delay or withhold its approval or consent,

(i) Ail Riders and Exhibits attached to this Agreement are material parts
of the Agreement,

(J) This Agreement may be executed In duplicatecounterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the
date first above written.

LESSOR:

City of Tualatin, Oregon
an Oregon municipal corporation

By:

Date:

Title:

Tax ID#:

hstjpr' Pi^ Te/yj

8

LESSEE;

Nextel West Corp.
a Delaware corporation,
d/b/a Nextel Communications

By: /L^—"

Date: cf//^ ljL,r)DO

Title: 'Virjp.

Attachment C pg 23



STATE OF OREGON

COUNTY OF

PNW

OR-0146-5

On 33^00 , before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public for the state,
personally appeared Tdiu^ . personally known
to me (or proved to me on the oath of , who
is personally known to me) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
within instrument, as a witness thereto, who, being by me duly sworn, deposes
and says that he/she was present and saw

, the same person described In and whose name is subscribed to the
within and annexed instrument In his/her/their authorized capacity(ies) as a party
thereto, execute the same, and that said affiant subscribed his/her name to the
within instrument as a witness at the request of

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

.(SEAL)

STATE OF eWBSePJ

COUNTY OF K

OFFICIAL SEAL
MAUREEN A SMITH

NOTARY PUBUC-OHEGON
_ COMlUUSSIQNNa 300986
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JULY 4.21101

3 /iiArrioolr^
On./^tz.k before me. K? A Notary Public,

personally appeared A?. . personailv known to me (or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he
executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the
instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted,
executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

fSEAU

Notary Public

My commission expires:
'i.^n

Attachment C pg 24



PNW

OR-0146-5

EXHIBIT A-1

DESCRIPTION OF LAND

to the Agreement dated ^^3 2000, by and between the
City ofTualatin, Oregon, an Oregon municipal corporation, as Lessor, and Nextei
West Corp., a Delaware corporation, d/b/a Nextei Communications, as Lessee.

The Land is described and/or depicted as follows:

APN: R0530134

ThdEas(Z47feetof lot1t. GLENMORAQ PARK, intheCfty ofTualatin. County Of Washingtcn«r)d
State of Oregon.

10 Attachment C pg 25



PNW

0R-014C-5

EXHIBIT A-2

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

to the Agreement dated /3 2000, by and between the
Cityof Tualatin, Oregon, an Oregon municipal corporation, as Lessor, and Nextel
West Corp,, a Delaware corporation, d/b/a Nextel Communications, as Lessee.

The Premises is described and/or depicted as follows (metes and bounds);

APN: R0530134

A tRACroroWDM IHf MORtHGASrOlMftTSR CFSCClKWtt
TDMCKP 1 SOUTH, I 1l£STCT IMiAUETK UOOOtAH,

OOWir. COSOOtt, /MO fiOMC A roRHOM CF VtAT
FRCPmrr oescasw w tw (vaiuiHAftr report or frtsr
/jjsfXM nnr tHsuRwce ooufamt or orexxn, ppoMHAm-
Tm£ fl£POKT HO, eSSSS?, DATED AOaJST 26, 1S99, UOfi£
PMJKXJU^Y oeSCRIBa AS F(MJLOllllSt •

BEOlomo AT mt MOfimCASr CORHBIt of LOT It OFCLEtOiOOAC
p/AK THDNccsioum orarto' wcsr/uMe theeastuneof
SMO LOT II. 9000 FBUi THENCE LEAWG$AJO EASTIME^ tfOfOH
Mifso': Ksr, eaoo rsn.moKc twm otTOto'E^ oaoo
fffH THENCE SOVtH OtOSfSCT EAST, 00.00 TO THE POINT OF
KBaMMCL

OONTUNS S,COO 90UANEfST. MOne CR tESS

11

InitO S

Attachment C pg 26



PNW

OR-0146-5

EXHIBIT B

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

to the Agreement dated /S 2000, by and between the
City of Tualatin, Oregon, an Oregon municipal corporation, as Lessor and Nexte!
West Corp., a Delaware corporation, d/b/a Nextel Communications, as Lessee.

The Premises are described and/or depicted as follows:

©
NoCloSew*

*

•***%

:

m

Notes;

1. This Exhibitmay be replaced by a land survey of the Premises once it is received by Lessee,

2. Setback of the Premises from the Land's boundanes shall be the distance required by the applicable
governmental authorities.

3. Width of access road shall be the width required by the applicable governmental authorities, including police
and fire departments.

4. The typo, numberand mounting positionsand locationsofantennas and transmission linesare illustrative only.
Actual types, numbers, mounting positions may vary from what is shown above.

5. The location ofany utility easement is illustrative only. Actual location shallbe determined bythe servicing utility
company in compliance with all local laws and regulations.

12 Attachment C pg 27



CLERK: Please return this document to:

Nextel West Corp.
1750 112*^^ Avenue NE, Suite C-1 GO
Bellevue, WA 98004
Attn: Property Manager

PNW

OR.0146-5

EXHIBIT C

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
OR-0146-5

APN: R0530134

This Memorandum of Agreement is entered into on this day of
2000, by and between the City of Tualatin, Oregon, an Oregon municipal
corporation, with an address at 18880 SW Martinazzi, Tualatin, OR 97062
(hereinafter referred to as "Lessor") and Nextel West Corp., a Delaware
corporation, d/b/a Nextel Communications, with an office at 1750 112*^ Avenue
NE, Suite C-100, Bellevue, WA 98004 (hereinafter referred to as "Lessee").

1. Lessor and Lessee entered into a Communications Site Lease Agreement
("Agreemenf) on the day of , 2000, for the purpose
of installing, operating and maintaining a radio communications facility
and other Improvements. All of the foregoing are set forth in the
Agreement.

2. The term of the Agreement Is for five (5) years commencing on
("Commencement Date"), and terminating on the fifth anniversary of the
Commencement Date with three (3) successive five (5) year options to
renew.

3. The Land which is the subject of the Agreement is described in Exhibit A
annexed hereto. The portion of the Land being leased to Lessee (the
"Premises") is described in Exhibits A-2 and B annexed hereto.

13

Idi'talt 1 I

Attachment C pg 28



PNW
OR-0146-5

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of
Agreementas of the day and year first above written.

LESSOR: LESSEE:
City of Tualatin, Oregon, Nextel West Corp.
an Oregon municipal corporation a Delaware corporation,

d/b/a Nextel Communications

By: By:

Date: Date:

Title: Title:

SUBSCRIBING WITNESS:

By:

Date:

Title:

14 Attachment C pg 29



STATE OF OREGON

COUNTY OF

PNW

OR-0146-5

On , before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public for the state,
personally appeared , personally known
to me (or proved to me on the oath of , who
is personally known to me) to be the person whose name Is subscribed to the
within Instrument, as a witness thereto, who, being by me duly sworn, deposes
and says that he/she was present and saw

, the same person described in and whose name Is subscribed to the
within and annexed instrument in his/her/their authorized capaGity(ies) as a party
thereto, execute the same, and that said affiant subscribed his/her name to the
within instrument as a witness at the request of

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(SEAL)
Notary Public

My commission expires:

STATE OF OREGON

COUNTY OF

On . before me, , Notary Public,
personally appeared , personally known to me (or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the within Instrument and acknowledged to me that he
executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the
instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted,
executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(SEAL)
Notary Public

My commission expires:

15

rnita s

Attachment C pg 30



THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Communications Site Lease Agreement (this "Amendment') is made effective as
of the latter signature date hereof (the "Effective Date") by and between Cityof Tualatin, Oregon, an
Oregon municipalcorporation {"Landlont') and Tower Asset Sub, Inc.,a Delawarecorporation {"Tenant')
(Landlord and Tenant being collectively referred to herein as the "Parties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Landlord owns the real property described on ExhibitAattached hereto and by this reference
made a part hereof (the "Parent Parcel"); and

WHEREAS, Landlord (or its predecessor-in-interest) and Tenant (or its predecessor-in-interest) entered into
that certain Communications Site Lease Agreement dated March 13,2000 (as the same may have been
amended from time to time, collectively,the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Tenant leases a portion of the
Parent Parcel and is the beneficiary of certain easements for access and publicutilities all as more particularly
described in the Lease (such portion of the Parent Parcel so leased along with such portion of the Parent
Parcel so affected, collectively, the "Leased Premises"), which Leased Premises are also described on Exhibit
^ and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the terms of the Lease to extend the term thereof and to
otherwise modify the Lease as expressly provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants set forth herein and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy, and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. One-Time Pavment. Tenantshall payto Landlord a one-time payment inthe amount of^^H
payable within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date and

subject to the following conditions precedent: (a) Tenant's receipt of this Amendment executed by
Landlord, on or before September 31,2017; (b) Tenant's confirmation that Landlord's statements as
further set forth in this Amendment are true, accurate, and complete, includingverification of Landlord's
ownership; (c)Tenant's receipt of any documents and other items reasonably requested by Tenant in
order to effectuate the transaction and payment contemplated herein; and (d) receipt by Tenant of an
original Memorandum (as defined herein) executed by Landlord.

2. Lease Term Extended. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Lease or this
Amendment, the Parties agree the Lease originally commenced on April 1,2000 and, without giving
effect to the terms of this Amendment but assuming the exercise by Tenant of all remaining renewal
options contained in the Lease (each an "ExistingRenewal Term" and, collectively, the "Existing
Renewal Terms"), the Lease is otherwise scheduled to expire on March 31,2020. In addition to any
Existing Renewal Term(s), the Lease is hereby amended to provideTenant with the option to extend the
Lease for each of four (4) additional five (5) year renewal terms (each a "New Renewal Term" and,
collectively, the "New Renewal Terms"). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the
Lease, (a) all Existing Renewal Terms and New Renewal Terms shall automatically renew unless Tenant
notifies Landlord that Tenant elects not to renew the Lease at least sixty (60) days prior to the
commencement of the next Renewal Term (as defined below) and (b) Landlord shall be able to terminate
this Lease only in the event of a material default by Tenant, which default is not cured within sixty (60)
days of Tenant's receipt of written notice thereof, provided, however, in the event that Tenant has
diligently commenced to cure a material default within sixty (60) days of Tenant's actual receipt of notice
thereof and reasonably requires additional time beyond the sixty (60) day cure period described herein
to effect such cure. Tenant shall have such additional time as is necessary (beyond the sixty [60] day cure
period) to effect the cure. References in this Amendment to "Renewal Term" shall refer, collectively,to

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 31



the Existing RenewalTerm(s) and the New RenewalTerm{s). The Landlord hereby agrees to execute and
return to Tenant an original Memorandum of Lease in the form and of the substance attached hereto as
Exhibit Band bythis reference made a part hereof (the "Memorandum") executed by Landlord, together
with any applicable forms needed to record the Memorandum, which forms shall be supplied by Tenant
to Landlord.

3. Rent and Escalation. Commencingon April 1,2020, the rent payable from Tenant to Landlord under the
Lease hereby
month (the "Rent"). Commencingon April1,2021 and on each successive annual anniversary thereof
(the

In the

event of any overpayment of Rent or Collocation Fee (as defined below) prior to or after the Effective
Date, Tenant shall have the right to deduct from any future Rent payments an amount equal to the
overpayment amount. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Lease,all Rent and any
other payments expressly required to be paid byTenant to Landlord under the Leaseand this
Amendment shall be paid to Cityof Tualatin, Oregon. The escalations in this Section shall be the only
escalations to the Rent and any/all rental escalations otherwise contained in the Leaseare hereby null
and void and of no further force and effect.

4. Revenue Share.

Subject to the other applicable terms, provisions, and conditions of this Section, Tenant shall pay
Landlordmillljjjjjlll^^^^l ofany rents actually received by Tenant under and pursuant to the
terms and provisionsof any new sublease, license or other collocation agreement for the use of any
portion of the Leased Premises entered into by and between Tenant and a third party (anysuch third
party, the "Additional Collocator^') beginning Effective Date (any such amounts, the "Coliocation
Fee"). Notwithstanding the foregoing. Landlordshall not be entitled to receive any portion of any
sums paid by a licensee or sublessee to reimburse Tenant, in whole or in part, for any improvements
to the Leased Premises or any structural enhancements to the tower located on the Leased Premises
(such tower, the "Tower"), or for costs, expenses, fees, or other charges incurred or associated with
the development, operation, repair, or maintenance of the Leased Premisesor the Tower.Hj

The initial payment of the Collocation Fee shall be due within thirty (30) days of actual receipt by
Tenant of the first collocation payment paid by an Additional Collocator. In the event a sublease or
license with an Additional Collocator expires or terminates. Tenant's obligation to pay the
Collocation Fee for such sublease or license shall automatically terminate upon the date of such
expiration or termination. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary. Tenant shall
have no obligation to pay to Landlord and Landlord hereby agrees not to demand or request that

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 32



Tenant pay to Landlordany Collocation Fee in connection with the sublease to or transfer of Tenant's
obligations and/or rights under the Lease, as modified by this Amendment, to any subsidiary, parent
or affiliate of Tenant.

Landlord hereby acknowledges and agrees that Tenant has the sole and absolute right to enter into,
renew, extend, terminate, amend, restate, or otherwise modify (including, without limitation,
reducing rent or allowing the early termination of) any future or existing subleases, licenses or
collocation agreements for occupancy on the Tower, all on such terms as Tenant deems advisable, in
Tenant's sole and absolute discretion, notwithstanding that the same may affect the amounts
payable to the Landlord pursuant to this Section.

i. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein. Landlord hereby acknowledges and
agrees that Tenant shall have no obligation to pay and shall not pay to Landlord any Collocation Fee
in connection with: (i) any subleases, licenses, or other collocation agreements between Tenant, or
Tenant's predecessors- in-interest, as applicable, and any third parties, or such third parties'
predecessors or successors- in-interest, as applicable, entered into prior to the Effective Date (any
such agreements, the "Existing Agreements"); (ii) any amendments, modifications, extensions,
renewals, and/or restatements to and/or of the ExistingAgreements entered into prior to the
Effective Date or which may be entered into on or after the Effective Date; (iii) any subleases,
licenses, or other collocation agreements entered into by and between Tenant and any Additional
Collocators for public emergency and/or safety system purposes that are required or ordered by any
governmental authority having jurisdiction at or over the Leased Premises; or (iv)any subleases,
licenses or other collocation agreements entered into by and between Tenant and any Additional
Collocators if the Landlord has entered into any agreements with such Additional Collocators to
accommodate such Additional Collocators' facilities outside of the Leased Premises and such

Additional Collocators pay any amounts (whether characterized as rent, additional rent, use,
occupancy or other types of fees, or any other types of monetary consideration) to Landlord for such
use.

Landlord and Tenant Acknowledgments. Except as modified herein, the Lease and all provisions
contained therein remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed. The parties
hereby agree that no defaults exist under the Lease. To the extent Tenant needed consent and/or
approval from Landlord for any of Tenant's activities at and uses of the site prior to the Effective Date,
Landlord's execution of this Amendment is and shall be considered consent to and approval of all such
activities and uses. Landlord hereby acknowledges and agrees that Tenant shall not need consent or
approval from, or to provide notice to. Landlord for any future activities at or uses of the Leased
Premises, including, without limitation, subleasing and licensing to additional customers, installing,
modifying, repairing, or replacing improvements within the Leased Premises, and/or assigning all or any
portion of Tenant's interest in this Lease, as modified by this Amendment. Tenant and Tenant's
sublessees and customers shall have vehicular (specifically including truck) and pedestrian access to the
Leased Premises from a public right of way on a 24 hours per day, 7 days per week basis, together with
utilities services to the Leased Premises from a public right of way. Upon request by Tenant and at
Tenant's sole cost and expense but without additional consideration owed to Landlord, Landlord hereby
agrees to promptly execute and return to Tenant building permits, zoning applications and other forms
and documents, including a memorandum of lease, as required for the use of the Leased Premises by
Tenant and/or Tenant's customers, licensees, and sublessees. Landlord hereby appoints Tenant as
Landlord's attorney-in-fact coupled with an interest to prepare, execute and deliver land use and zoning
and building permit applications that concern the Leased Premises, on behalf of Landlord with federal,
state and local governmental authorities, provided that such applications shall be limited strictly to the
use of the Leased Premises as a wireless telecommunications facility and that such attorney-in-fact shall

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 33



not allow Tenant to re-zone or otherwise reclassify the Leased Premises or the Parent Parcel. The terms,
provisions, and conditions of this Section shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment.

6. Limited Right of First Refusal. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this paragraph
shall not apply to any fee simple sale of the Parent Parcel from Landlord to any prospective purchaser
that is not a Third Party Competitor (as herein defined). IfLandlord receives an offer or desires to offer
to: (i)sell or convey any interest (including, but not limited to, leaseholds or easements) in any real
property of which the Leased Premises is a part to any person or entity directly or indirectly engaged in
the business of owning, acquiring, operating, managing, investing in or leasing wireless
telecommunications infrastructure (any such person or entity, a "Third Party Competitor") or (ii) assign
all or any portion of Landlord's interest in the Lease to a Third Party Competitor (any such offer, the
"Offer"), Tenant shall have the right of first refusal to purchase the real property or other interest being
offered by Landlord in connection with the Offer on the same terms and conditions. IfTenant elects, in
its sole and absolute discretion, to exercise its right of first refusal as provided herein. Tenant must
provide Landlord with notice of its election not later than forty-five (45) days after Tenant receives
written notice from Landlord of the Offer. IfTenant elects not to exercise Tenant's right of first refusal
with respect to an Offer as provided herein. Landlord may complete the transaction contemplated in the
Offer with the Third Party Competitor on the stated terms and price but with the express condition that
such sale is made subject to the terms of the Lease, as modified by this Amendment. Landlord hereby
acknowledges and agrees that any sale or conveyance by Landlord in violation of this Section is and shall
be deemed to be null and void and of no force and effect. The terms, provisions, and conditions of this
Section shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment.

7. Landlord Statements. Landlord hereby represents and warrants to Tenant that: (i) to the extent
applicable. Landlord is duly organized, validlyexisting, and in good standing in the jurisdiction in which
Landlord was organized, formed, or incorporated, as applicable, and is otherwise in good standing and
authorized to transact business in each other jurisdiction in which such qualifications are required; (ii)
Landlord has the full power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this
Amendment, and, to the extent applicable, the person(s) executing this Amendment on behalf of
Landlord, have the authority to enter into and deliver this Amendment on behalf of Landlord; (ill) no
consent, authorization, order, or approval of, or filing or registration with, any governmental authority or
other person or entity is required for the execution and delivery by Landlord of this Amendment; (iv)
Landlord is the sole owner of the Leased Premises and all other portions of the Parent Parcel; (v) to the
best of Landlord's knowledge, there are no agreements, liens, encumbrances, claims, claims of lien,
proceedings, or other matters (whether filed or recorded in the applicable public records or not) related
to, encumbering, asserted against, threatened against, and/or pending with respect to the Leased
Premises or any other portion of the Parent Parcel which do or could (now or any time in the future)
adversely impact, limit, and/or impair Tenant's rights under the Lease, as amended and modified by this
Amendment; and (vi)the square footage of the Leased Premises is the greater of Tenant's existing
improvements on the Parent Parcel or the land area conveyed to Tenant under the Lease. The
representations and warranties of Landlord made in this Section shall survive the execution and delivery
of this Amendment. Landlord hereby does and agrees to indemnify Tenant for any damages, losses,
costs, fees, expenses, or charges of any kind sustained or incurred by Tenant as a result of the breach of
the representations and warranties made herein or if any of the representations and warranties made
herein prove to be untrue. The aforementioned indemnification shall survive the execution and delivery
of this Amendment.

8. Confidentialitv. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Lease or in this Amendment,
Landlord agrees and acknowledges that all the terms of this Amendment and the Lease and any
information furnished to Landlord by Tenant in connection therewith shall be and remain confidential.

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1
Attachment C pg 34



Except with Landlord's family, attorney, accountant, broker, lender, a prospective fee simple purchaser
of the Parent Parcel, or if otherwise required by law. Landlord shall not disclose any such terms or
information without the prior written consent of Tenant. The terms and provisionsof this Section shall
survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment.

9. Notices. All notices must be in writing and shall be valid upon receipt when delivered by hand, by
nationally recognized courier service, or by First Class United States Mail, certified, return receipt
requested to the addresses set forth herein: to Landlord at: City of Tualatin, Oregon, 18880 SW
Martinazzi Avenue, Tualatin, OR97062; to Tenant at: Attn.: Land Management 10 Presidential Way,
Woburn, MA01801. with copv to: Attn.: Legal Dept., 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, MA 02116. Any
of the Parties, by thirty (30) days prior written notice to the others in the manner provided herein, may
designate one or more different notice addresses from those set forth above. Refusal to accept delivery
of any notice or the inability to deliver any notice because of a changed address for which no notice was
given as required herein, shail be deemed to be receipt of any such notice.

10. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which when so
executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken together, shall
constitute one and the same instrument, even though all Parties are not signatories to the original or the
same counterpart. Furthermore, the Parties may execute and deliver this Amendment by electronic
means such as .pdf or similar format. Each of the Parties agrees that the delivery of the Amendment by
electronic means will have the same force and effect as delivery of original signatures and that each of
the Parties may use such electronic signatures as evidence of the execution and deiivery of the
Amendment by all Parties to the same extent as an original signature.

11. Governing Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Lease and in this
Amendment, the Lease and this Amendment shall be governed by and construed in all respects in
accordance with the laws of the State or Commonwealth in which the Leased Premises is situated,

without regard to the conflicts of laws provisions of such State or Commonwealth.

12. Waiver. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in no event shall Landlord or Tenant
be liable to the other for, and Landlord and Tenant hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted under
applicable law, the right to recover incidental, consequential (including, without limitation, lost profits,
loss of use or loss of business opportunity), punitive, exemplary and similar damages.

13. Tenant's Securltlzatlon Rights; Estoppel. Landlord hereby consents to the granting by Tenant of one or
more leasehold mortgages, collateral assignments, liens, and/or other security interests (collectively, a
"Security Interest") in Tenant's interest in this Lease, as amended, and all of Tenant's property and
fixtures attached to and lyingwithin the Leased Premises and further consents to the exercise by
Tenant's mortgagee ["Tenant's Mortgagee") of its rights to exercise its remedies, including without
limitation foreclosure, with respect to any such Security Interest. Landlordshall recognize the holder of
any such Security Interest of which Landlord is given prior written notice (any such holder, a "Holder") as
"Tenant" hereunder in the event a Holder succeeds to the interest of Tenant hereunder by the exercise
of such remedies. Landlord further agrees to execute a written estoppel certificate within thirty (30)
days of written request of the same by Tenant or Holder.

14. Taxes. The Parties hereby agree that Section 8 of the Lease is deleted in its entirety. During the term of
the Lease, Landlord shall pay when due all real property, personal property, and other taxes, fees and
assessments attributable to the Parent Parcel, including the Leased Premises. Tenant hereby agrees to
reimburse Landlord for any personal property taxes in addition to any increase in real property taxes
levied against the Parent Parcel, to the extent both are directly attributable to Tenant's improvements on

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 35



the Leased Premises (but not, however, taxes or other assessments attributable to periods prior to the
Effective Date), provided, however, that Landlord must furnish written documentation (the substance
and form of which shall be reasonably satisfactory to Tenant) of such personal property taxes or real
property tax Increase to Tenant along with proof of payment of same by Landlord. Anything to the
contrary notwithstanding. Tenant shall not be obligated to reimburse Landlord for any applicable taxes
unless Landlord requests such reimbursement within one (1) year after the date such taxes became due.
Landlord shall submit requests for reimbursement In writing to: American Tower Corporation, Attn:
LondlordRelations, 10 Presidential Way, Woburn, MA 01801 unless otherwise directed by Tenant from
time to time. Subject to the requirements set forth In this Section, Tenant shall make such
reimbursement payment within forty-five (45) days of receipt of a written reimbursement request from
Landlord. Tenant shall pay applicable personal property taxes directly to the localtaxing authority to the
extent such taxes are billed and sent directly by the taxing authority to Tenant. IfLandlord falls to pay
when due any taxes affecting the Parent Parcel as required herein. Tenant shall have the right, but not
the obligation, to pay such taxes on Landlord's behalf and: (I) deduct the full amount of any such taxes
paid by Tenant on Landlord's behalf from any future payments required to be made by Tenant to
Landlord hereunder; (II) demand reimbursement from Landlord, which reimbursement payment
Landlord shall make within thirty (30) days of such demand by Tenant; and/or (III) collect from Landlord
any such tax payments made by Tenant on Landlord's behalf by any lawful means.

[SIGNATURES COMMENCE ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 36



LANDLORD:

City of Tualatin, Oregon
an Oregon municipal corporation

Signature: _

Print Name:

Title:
Date:

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 37



TENANT:

Tower Asset Sub, Inc.
a Delaware corporation

Signature:

Print Name:

Title:
Date:

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 38



EXHIBIT A

This Exhibit A may be repiaced at Tenant's option as described below.

PARENT PARCEL

Tenant shall have the right to replace this description with a description obtainedfrom Landlord's deed (or
deeds) that include the land area encompassed by the Lease and Tenants improvements thereon.

The Parent Parcel consists of the entire legal taxable lot owned by Landlord as described In a deed (or deeds)
to Landlord of which the Leased Premises Is a part thereof with such Parent Parcel being described below.

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1
Attachment C pg 39



EXHIBIT A (Continued)

LEASED PREMISES

Tenant shall have the right to replace this description with a description obtainedfrom the Lease orfrom a
description obtainedfrom an as-buiit survey conducted by Tenant

The Leased Premises consists of that portion of the Parent Parcel as defined in the Lease which shall Include
access and utilities easements The square footage of the Leased Premises shall be the greater of: (I) the land
area conveyed to Tenant In the Lease; (II) Tenant's (and Tenant's customers) existing Improvements on the
Parent Parcel; or (III) the legal description or depiction below (If any).

A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH
RANGE I WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, CITY OF TUALATIN, WASHINGTON
COUNTY. OREGON MOREPARTICULARLYDESCRIBEDASFOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEASTCORNER OFLOT II. "GLENMORAG PARK"; THENCE
ALONG THE EAST LINE OFSAID LOTH, S0r2yi8"W, ADISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET:
THENCE LEA VING SAID EASTLINE. N88^05'I4"W, ADISTANCE OF60.00 FEET; THENCE
N0r23'18"E. ADISTANCE OF60.00 TO THE NORTHLINE OFSAID LOT II; THENCE
ALONG THE NORTHLINE OFSAID LOT II, SSS'̂ OS 'I4"E, ADISTANCE OF60.00 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1
Attachment C pg 40



EXHIBIT A (Continued)

ACCESS AND UTILITIES

The access and utility easements include all easements of record as well that portion of the Parent Parcel

currently utilized by Tenant (and Tenant's customers) for ingress, egress and utility purposes from the Leased

Premises to and from a public right of way including but not limited to:

TOGETHER WITHA20FOOTACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT OVER, ACROSS OR
THROUGH THE BASTPORTION OFLOTS II, 12AND 13. "GLENMORAG PARK",
SITUATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OFSECTION 22. TOWNSHIP 2SOUTH, RANGE
I WEST OFTHE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN. CITY OFTUALATIN. WASHINGTON COUNTY.
OREGON, THE CENTERLINE OFSAID EASEMENTISMORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING ATA POINT BEING S0I°23'I8"W, ADISTANCE OF60.00 FEETAND
N88''05'I4"W. ADISTANCE OF47.09 FEET FROM THE NORTHEASTCORNER OFSAID
LOT //; THENCESIr04'34"W, ADISTANCE OF186.33 FEET; THENCE S30''43'39"W. A
DISTANCE OF 161.21 FEET; THENCE S06''27'58"W. ADISTANCE OF162.15 FEET;
THENCE S08''36'3I "W. ADISTANCE OF120 65FEET; THENCE SIr24'I3"E. ADISTANCE
OF 19.50 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OFSW. HERAUN ROAD (40 FEET
WIDE).

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1
Attachment C pg 41



EXHIBIT B

FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 42



Prepared bv and Return to:

American Tower

10 Presidential Way
Woburn, MA 01801

Attn: Land Management/Sean Chen, Esq.
ATCSite No: 308345

ATCSite Name: King City OR 1
Assessor's Parcel No(s): R0530189

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

This Memorandum of Lease (the "Memorandum") is entered into on the day of
, 201 by and between Cityof Tualatin, Oregon, an Oregon municipal corporation

["Landlord") and Tower Asset Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation ["Tenant').

NOTICE is hereby given of the Lease(as defined and described below)for the purpose of recording and giving
notice of the existence of said Lease. To the extent that notice of such Lease has previously been recorded,
then this Memorandum shall constitute an amendment of any such prior recorded notice(s).

1. Parent Parcel and Lease. Landlord is the owner of certain real property being described in Exhibit A
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof (the "Parent Parcel"). Landlord (or its
predecessor-in-interest) and Tenant (or its predecessor-in-interest) entered into that certain
Communications Site LeaseAgreement dated March 13,2000 (as the same may have been amended
from time to time, collectively, the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Tenant leases a portion of the Parent
Parcel and is the beneficiary ofcertain easements for access and public utilities all as more particularly
described in the Lease (such portion of the Parent Parcel so leased along with such portion of the Parent
Parcel so affected, collectively, the "Leased Premises"), which Leased Premises is also described on
Exhibit A.

2. Expiration Date. Subject to the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Lease,and assuming the exercise
byTenant of all renewal options contained in the Lease, the final expiration date of the Leasewould be
March 31,2040. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Tenant be required to exercise any
option to renew the term of the Lease.

3. Leased Premises Description. Tenant shall have the right, exercisable byTenant at any time during the
original or renewal terms of the Lease, to cause an as-built survey of the Leased Premisesto be prepared
and, thereafter, to replace, in whole or in part, the description(s) of the Leased Premises set forth on
ExhibitA with a legal description or legal descriptions based upon such as-built survey. UponTenant's
request. Landlordshall execute and deliver any documents reasonably necessary to effectuate such
replacement, including, without limitation, amendments to this Memorandum and to the Lease.

4. Right of First Refusal. There is a right of first refusal in the Lease.

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 43



5. Effect/Miscellaneous. This Memorandum Is not a complete summary of the terms, provisions and
conditions contained in the Lease. In the event of a conflict between this Memorandum and the Lease,

the Leaseshall control. Landlord hereby grants the right to Tenant to complete and execute on behalf of
Landlordany government or transfer tax forms necessary for the recording of this Memorandum. This
right shall terminate upon recording of this Memorandum.

6. Notices. All notices must be in writing and shall be valid upon receipt when delivered by hand, by
nationally recognized courier service, or by First Class United States Mail, certified, return receipt
requested to the addresses set forth herein: to Landlord at: City of Tualatin, Oregon, 18880 SW
Martlnazzi Avenue, Tualatin, OR 97062; to Tenant at: Attn.: Land Management 10 Presidential Way,
Woburn, MA 01801. with copv to: Attn.: Legal Dept., 116 Huntington Avenue, Boston, MA 02116. Any
of the parties hereto, by thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other in the manner provided herein,
may designate one or more different notice addresses from those set forth above. Refusal to accept
deliveryof any notice or the inabilityto deliver any notice because of a changed address for which no
notice was given as required herein, shall be deemed to be receipt of any such notice.

7. Counterparts. This Memorandum may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which when so
executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken together, shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

8. Governing Law. This Memorandum shall be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance
with the laws of the State or Commonwealth in which the Leased Premises is situated, without regard to
the conflicts of laws provisions of such State or Commonwealth.

[SIGNATURES COMMENCE ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 44



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have each executed this Memorandum as of the day and year
set forth below.

LANDLORD 2 WITNESSES

City of Tualatin, Oregon
an Oregon municipal corporation.

Signature: Signature: _
Print Name: Print Name:
Title:
Date: Signature: _

Print Name:

WITNESS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of

County of.

Onthis dayof , 201 , before me, the undersigned Notary Public,
personally appeared _, who proved to me on the basis
of satisfactoryevidence, to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribedto the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity{ies), and that
byhis/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s) or the entity upon which the person(s) acted,
executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
Print Name:

Mycommission expires: [SEAL]

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ONFOLLOWING PAGE]

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 45



TENANT WITNESS

Tower Asset Sub, Inc.

a Delaware corporation

Signature: Signature: _

Print Name: Print Name:
Title:
Date: Signature: _

Print Name:

WITNESS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

County of Middlesex

On this day of , 201 , before me,
the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, to be the person(s) whose name{s) Is/are subscribed
to the within Instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same In hIs/her/theIr
authorized capaclty{ies), and that by hIs/her/theIr slgnature(s) on the Instrument, the person(s) or the entity
upon which the person(s) acted, executed the Instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
Print Name:

My commission expires: [SEAL]

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 46



EXHIBIT A

This Exhibit A may be replaced at Tenant's option as described below.

PARENT PARCEL

Tenant shall have the right to replace this description with a description obtainedfrom Landlord's deed (or
deeds) that Include the land area encompassed by the Lease and Tenant's improvements thereon.

The Parent Parcel consists of the entire legal taxable lot owned by Landlord as described in a deed (or deeds)
to Landlord of which the Leased Premises is a part thereof with such Parent Parcel being described below.

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1
Attachment C pg 47



EXHIBIT A (Continued)

LEASED PREMISES

Tenant shall have the right to replace this description with a description obtainedfrom the Lease or from a
description obtainedfrom an as-buiit survey conducted by Tenant

The Leased Premises consists of that portion of the Parent Parcel as defined in the Lease which shall include
access and utilities easements The square footage of the Leased Premises shall be the greater of: (i)the land
area conveyed to Tenant in the Lease; (ii) Tenant's (and Tenant's customers) existing improvements on the
Parent Parcel; or (iii) the legal description or depiction below (if any).

A TRACTOF LANDIN THE NORTHEASTQUARTER OF SECTION 22. TOWNSHIP2 SOUTH. •
RANGE I WESTOF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN. CITY OF TUALA TIN. WASHINGTON
COUNTY. OREGON. MORE PARTICULARLYDESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNINGAT THENORTHEASTCORNER OF LOT II. "GLENMORAG PARK"; THENCE
ALONG THE EAST LINE OFSAID LOTH. S0r2yi8"W. A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET:
THENCE LEAVING SAIDE.AST LINE. N88°05'I4"W, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET, THENCE
N0r25'I8"E, A DISTANCE OF 60.00 TO THENORTHLINE OF SAIDLOTH; THENCE
ALONG THENORTHLINE OF SAID LOT 11. A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1
Attachment C pg 48



EXHIBIT A (Continued)

ACCESS AND UTILITIES

The access and utilityeasements include all easements of record as well that portion of the Parent Parcel

currently utilized by Tenant (and Tenant's customers) for ingress, egress and utility purposes from the Leased
Premises to and from a public right of way including but not limited to:

TOGETHER WITHA 20 FOOTACCESSAND UTILITY EASEMENT OVER, ACROSS OR
THROUGH THEEASTPORTION OF LOTS li. 12 AND 13. "GLENMORAG PARK".
SITUATED IN THENORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION22. TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE
1 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN. CITY OF TUALATIN. WASHINGTON COUNTY.
OREGON. THECENTERLINE OF SAID EASEMENTIS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING ATA POINT BEING S0r23T8"W. A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEETAND
N88'*05'14"W. A DISTANCEOF 47.09 FEET FROM THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID
LOTH: THENCE SI r04'34"W. A DISTANCE OF 186.33 FEET; THENCE SIOWIO'W. A
DISTANCE OF 161.21 FEET; THENCE S06''2T58"W. A DISTANCE OF 162.15 FEET:
THENCE S08°36'3rW. A DISTANCE OF 120 65 FEET: THENCE SI r24'I3"E. A DISTANCE
OF 19.50 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OFS.W. HERMAN ROAD (40FEET
WIDE).

Site No: 308345

Site Name: King City OR 1

Attachment C pg 49



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

FROM: Charles Benson, Associate Planner

DATE: 11/16/2017

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Variance to the Wireless Communication Facility (WCF)
Separation Requirement for the POR Durham project in the Light Manufacturing
(ML) Planning District at 10290 SW Tualatin Road (Tax Map/Lot: 2S1 23B
000800) (VAR-17-0001) (RESO TDC 609-17).

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:
The issue before the Tualatin Planning Commission (TPC) is consideration of a Variance
request for a Wireless Communication Facility (WCF), POR Durham, to locate at 10290 SW
Tualatin Road within 1,500 feet of an existing WCF.  A separate Architectural Review decision
will review the construction of a new 100-foot-tall monopole with antennas mounted at the top
and opportunities for ancillary ground equipment. The existing WCF is located at 10699 SW
Herman Road approximately 750 feet southwest of the proposed WCF location (see Attachment
A).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Tualatin Planning Commission (TPC) consider the staff report and
supporting attachments and grant a variance based on the analysis and findings of the variance
criteria. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Acom Consulting, Inc. proposes to construct a new unmanned wireless communication facility
(WCF) on behalf of Lendlease (US) Telecom Holdings LLC - c/o PI Tower Development LLC,
Verizon Wireless, and the property owner, Tote ‘N Stow, Inc. on the southwest corner of 10290
SW Tualatin Road. The proposed WCF would include a new 100-foot monopole support tower
with antennas mounted at the top and opportunities for ancillary ground equipment including
equipment cabinets, natural gas generator, cabling and ice bridge will be located below in a
new 25’ x 48’ secure fenced lease area surrounding the tower. It is anticipated that the proposed
WCF will generate approximately 1-2 visits per month from a site technician.

The proposed WCF would be located on an approximately 3.6-acre parcel (Washington County
Tax Lot 2S1 23B 000800), the southern of two lots that comprise the entire Tote ‘N Stow
property. The Tote ‘N Stow provides a range of covered and open storage services for
recreational vehicles and the proposed WCF would be located on a paved area in the
southwest corner of the project site and would not affect existing storage operations. The
subject lot and neighboring properties on all sides are located in the City of Tualatin’s Light

Attachment D pg 1



Manufacturing (ML) Planning District, which generally extends northward to SW Tualatin Road,
eastward to SW 100th Court, southward to SW Herman Road, and westward to SW 108th
Avenue.

A pre-application conference for this project was held on March 23, 2017. A
neighborhood/developer meeting—as required by Tualatin Development Code (TDC)
31.063—was held on May 10, 2017, commencing at 5:30 PM at the Juanita Pohl Center, 8513
SW Tualatin Road, Tualatin, OR 97062. Meeting attendees included members from the  project
team, one representative from the City of Tualatin, and 14 members from the community.

As the proposed WCF would be located within 1,500 feet of an existing WCF at 10699 SW
Herman Road, the proposed WCF requires a variance by the Tualatin Planning Commission
(TPC) from the provisions of Tualatin Development Code (TDC) 73.470(9), which requires a
1,500-foot separation between WCFs (see Attachment B, Variance Application).

As stated in TDC Section 33.025(1): "(1) The City may grant a variance from the provisions of
TDC 73.470(9), which requires a 1500-foot separation between WCFs, providing the applicant
demonstrates compliance with (a) or (b)." The applicant has chosen to demonstrate compliance
with TDC Section 33.025(1)(a)(i) through (iii), and staff have reviewed the application materials
included pertinent excerpts in Attachment C, Analysis & Findings, a summary of which is
included below.
  
To grant the requested variance, the TPC must find the applicant has demonstrated compliance
with the following:

TDC 33.025(1)(a): Coverage and Capacity
(i) It is technically not practicable to provide the needed capacity or coverage the tower is
intended to provide and locate the proposed tower on available sites more than 1,500
feet from an existing wireless communication facility or from the proposed location of a
wireless communication facility for which an application has been filed and not denied.
The needed capacity or coverage shall be documented with a Radio Frequency report.

The applicant states that the potential sites outside of the 1,500-foot radius from the existing
WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road were eliminated from consideration due to the lack of
adequacy of service improvements from these locations and their close proximity to residential
areas where these facilities are not permitted or where visual impacts may occur. The applicant
also noted that the existing WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road was not a suitable location due to
interference from trees surrounding this site (which would affect coverage) and the applicant
provided a RF Engineer Interference Letter in addition to the required RF report.

(ii) The collocation report, required as part of the Architectural Review submittal, shall
document that the existing WCFs within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF, or a WCF within
1500 feet of the proposed WCF for which application has been filed and not denied,
cannot be modified to accommodate another provider.

The applicant states that modifications to the existing WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road required
to host the proposed antennas would result in greater impacts than those of constructing an
entirely new monopole structure at the proposed Tote 'N Stow site, namely increasing the height
of the 146-foot-tall existing WCF (which required a variance to permit its construction in 2000)
or the topping or removal of trees that were preserved as a condition of that variance
(VAR-99-02). The maximum permitted height of WCFs in the Light Manufacturing (ML) Planning

Attachment D pg 2



District is 100 feet and the proposed WCF would not require a height variance.

(iii) There are no available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers on which
antennas may be located and still provide the approximate coverage the tower is
intended to provide.

Staff has confirmed via study area reconnaissance that no such structures exist in the
immediate area, noting that maximum structure height in ML Planning Districts (outside of
flagpoles and WCFs) is 50 feet.

Staff finds that VAR-17-0001 meets the criteria of TDC 33.025(1)(a).

Staff received one public comment letter voicing concerns about this proposal prior to the
scheduled public hearing for this application, which is included as Attachment E.

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Approval of VAR-17-0001 and Resolution TDC 609-17 would result in the following: 

Allows the applicant to locate a Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) at 10290 SW
Tualatin Road; and
Allows staff to review an Architectural Review (AR) for the proposed WCF project with an
appropriate location.

Denial of VAR-17-0001 would result in the following: 

Prohibits the applicant from locating a WCF at 10290 SW Tualatin Road.

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
The Tualatin Planning Commission (TPC) has three options: 

Approve the proposed variance (VAR-17-0001);1.
Deny the proposed variance with findings that state which criteria in Tualatin Development
Code (TDC) 33.025(1) the applicant fails to meet; or

2.

Continue the discussion of the proposed variance and return to the matter at a later date.3.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The Fiscal Year 2017/18 budget allocated revenue to process current planning applications,
and the applicant submitted payment per the City of Tualatin Fee Schedule to process the
application.

Attachments: Attachment A - Vicinity Map
Attachment B - Variance Application
Attachment C - Analysis & Findings
Attachment D - Powerpoint Presentation
Attachment E - Public Comments

Attachment D pg 3



POR DURHAM WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY 

VARIANCE APPLICATION 

ATTACHMENT A: VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Attachment D pg 4



 
 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 
Information 
Name:  Title:  

Company Name:  
 

 
Current address: 

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone: Fax: Email:  

Applicant 
Name: Company Name: 

Address: 
  City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone: Fax: Email:  

Applicant’s Signature:  Date:  

Property Owner 
Name:  

Address: 

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Property Owner’s Signature:  Date 

(Note: Letter of authorization is required if not signed by owner) 

Architect 
Name: 

Address: 

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone: Fax:  Email:  

Landscape Architect 
Name:  

Address:  

City: State: ZIP Code: 

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Engineer 
Name:  

 
 

Address: 

City: State:  ZIP Code:  

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  

Project 
Project Title:  

Address: 

City:  State: ZIP Code:  

Brief Project Description:   
 
 Proposed Use: 

Attachment D pg 5

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Reid Stewart

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Consultant/Agent

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Acom Consulting, Inc.

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
4015 SW Battaglia Avenue

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Gresham

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97080

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
reid.stewart@acomconsultinginc.com

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
503.720.6526

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
POR Durham

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
10290 SW Tualatin Road

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Tualatin

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97062

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97062

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
10290 SW Tualatin Road

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
TOTE-N-STOW INC. - Joana Freedman

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Tualatin

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
New 100' monopole associated with new wireless communications facility

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Lendlease (US) Telecom Holdings LLC c/o PI Tower Development LLC

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
909 Lake Carolyn Parkway

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Irving

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
TX

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
75039

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Wireless communications facility

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Brandon Olsen

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
503.951.7515

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
brandon.olsen@pitowers.com

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Rick Matteson

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
425.209.6723

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
rick.matteson@acomconsultinginc.com

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
97035

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
OR

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
Lake Oswego

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
5200 SW Meadows Road, Suite 150

reidstewart
Typewritten Text

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
503.692.3930

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
N/A

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
TBD

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
See attached LOA

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
See attached LOA



Value of Improvements:  

 
 
 
AS THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THIS APPLICATION, I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE READ THIS APPLICATION AND 
STATE THAT THE INFORMATION ABOVE, ON THE FACT SHEET, AND THE SURROUNDING PERTY OWNER MAILING LIST IS 
CORRECT. I AGREE TO COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE CITY AND COUNTY ORDINANCES AND STATE LAWS REGARDING 
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION AND LAND USE. 
 
 
 
  

Applicant’s Signature:  Date:  

 

Office Use 
Case No:  Date Received: Received by:  

Fee: Complete Review: Receipt No:  

Application Complete as of:  
     

ARB hearing date (if applicable):  

Posting Verification:  6 copies of drawings (folded) 
  1 reproducible 8 ½” X 11” vicinity map 1 reproducible 8 ½” X 11” site, grading, LS, Public Facilities plan 

Neighborhood/Developer meeting materials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised: 6/12/14 

Attachment D pg 6

reidstewart
Typewritten Text
$130,000



 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
APPLICATION	FOR		
VARIANCE	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
UNMANNED	WIRELESS	
TELECOMMUNICATIONS	
FACILITY	AT:		
	
	
10290	SW	Tualatin	Road	
Tualatin,	OR	97062		
	
	
	
Prepared	By	
	

	
	
Date		
October	03,	2017	
	
	
	
Project	Name	
POR	Durham	

Attachment D pg 7



   

 2 

	
Applicant:			 	 Lendlease	(US)	Telecom	Holdings	LLC		

c/o	PI	Tower	Development	LLC	
909	Lake	Carolyn	Parkway	
Irving,	TX	75039	

	
Co-Applicant:	 	 Verizon	Wireless	(VAW),	LLC	dba,	Verizon	Wireless	

5430	NE	122nd	Avenue	
Portland,	OR	97230	

	
Representative:		 Acom	Consulting,	Inc.	
	 	 	 Reid	Stewart	
	 	 	 5200	SW	Meadows	Road,	Suite	150	

Lake	Oswego,	OR	97035	
	

Property	Owner:	 Tote	‘N	Stow,	Inc.	
	 	 	 10290	SW	Tualatin	Road	

Tualatin,	OR	97062	
	
Project	Information:	
Site	Address:		 	 10290	SW	Tualatin	Road,	Tualatin,	OR	97062	
Parcel:			 	 2S123B000800	
Parcel	Area:	 	 3.63	acres	
Zone	Designation:		 ML	(Light	Manufacturing	Planning	District)	
Existing	Use:	 	 Storage	Facility	
Project	Area:	 	 1,200	square	foot	lease	area	(25’	x	48’	fenced	equipment	area)	
	
	
Chapter	33:	Variances	
	
Section	33.025	–	Criteria	for	Granting	a	Variance	for	a	Wireless	Communication	Facility.	
	
No	variance	to	the	separation	or	height	requirements	for	wireless	communication	facilities	shall	be	granted	by	
the	Planning	Commission	unless	it	can	be	shown	that	the	following	criteria	are	met.		The	criteria	for	granting	a	
variance	to	the	separation	or	height	requirements	for	wireless	communication	facilities	shall	be	limited	to	this	
section,	and	shall	not	include	the	standard	variance	criteria	of	Section	33.020,	Conditions	for	Granting	a	Variance	
that	is	not	for	a	Sign	or	a	Wireless	Communication	Facility.	
	

(1) The	City	may	grant	a	variance	from	the	provisions	of	TDC	73.470(9),	which	requires	a	1500-foot	
separation	between	WCFs,	providing	the	applicant	demonstrates	compliance	with	(a)	or	(b)	below.	

(a) coverage	and	capacity.	
(i) It	is	technically	not	practicable	to	provide	the	needed	capacity	or	coverage	the	tower	is	

intended	to	provide	and	locate	the	proposed	tower	on	available	sites	more	than	1,500	
feet	from	an	existing	wireless	communication	facility	or	from	the	proposed	location	of	a	
wireless	communication	facility	for	which	an	application	has	been	filed	and	not	

Attachment D pg 8



   

 3 

denied.		The	needed	capacity	or	coverage	shall	be	documented	with	a	Radio	Frequency	
report;	

	
Response:		Verizon	Wireless,	the	co-applicant,	has	done	extensive	research	looking	at	opportunities	in	the	
area	to	collocate	on	existing	towers	or	buildings,	as	that	is	always	a	preferred	option	when	available.		If	an	
existing	tower	or	structure	is	not	available	at	the	specified	height	or	not	attainable	because	of	space	
constraints	or	unreliable	structural	design,	then	Verizon	Wireless	will	propose	a	new	tower.		In	this	instance,	
there	is	one	existing	tower,	the	ATC	tower,	which	is	located	outside	of	the	search	area	designated	as	usable	by	
Verizon	Wireless’	RF	department,	but	within	the	1,500-foot	radius	of	the	proposed	facility.		This	tower	is	not	
viable	as	a	solution	to	meet	their	coverage	and	capacity	objectives	due	to	the	existing	trees	that	would	cause	
interference.		There	are	no	other	existing	towers	available	to	collocate	on	within	the	area	of	interest	thus	a	
new	tower	is	being	proposed,	which	will	in	turn	be	available	for	other	providers	to	collocate	on	in	the	future.		
	
In	order	to	meet	the	Verizon’s	coverage	and	capacity	objectives,	it	is	necessary	to	site	a	tower	within	the	
search	ring	provided	by	Verizon’s	RF	department	as	shown	below.		Moving	outside	this	search	ring	is	
technically	not	practicable	and	has	adverse	effects	on	providing	the	needed	coverage	and	capacity	objectives	
the	tower	is	intended	to	provide,	which	include	nearby	high-traffic	residential	areas	to	the	North.		Siting	
outside	the	search	ring	can	also	create	interference	with	other	nearby	network	sites	where	coverage	may	
overlap.	
	
The	Applicant	is	requesting	a	variance	to	the	1,500-foot	tower	separation	requirement.		There	is	an	existing	
146-foot	ATC	monopole	support	structure	outside	of	the	search	ring,	approximately	750	feet	to	the	SW	of	the	
proposed	support	tower,	located	at	10699	SW	Herman	Road.		Per	the	tower	owner,	there	is	currently	
available	space	on	the	tower	at	the	100-foot	level,	however	this	is	not	high	enough	to	avoid	interference	from	
multiple	trees	surrounding	the	tower	and	still	meet	coverage	and	capacity	objectives	to	the	North,	as	detailed	
in	the	attached	RF	Usage	and	Facility	Justification	Report	and	RF	Engineer	Interference	Letter.			
	
Locating	the	tower	within	the	search	ring	and	outside	the	1,500-foot	radius	of	the	nearby	existing	ATC	tower	
is	also	not	a	desirable	alternative	as	it	would	mean	locating	in	another	part	of	the	ML	zone	without	existing	
screening	or	in	the	RML	or	RMH	zone,	where	a	conditional	use	permit	would	be	required	and	where	it	would	
be	very	visible	to	nearby	residential	areas.	
	
In	addition,	T-Mobile	has	also	indicated	that	they	intend	on	co-locating	on	the	proposed	WCF,	if	approved,	as	
the	existing	ATC	tower	to	the	SW	will	not	meet	their	coverage	and	capacity	requirements	either	as	noted	in	
the	attached	Letter	from	T-Mobile	RF.	
	

(ii) The	collocation	report,	required	as	part	of	the	Architectural	Review	submittal,	shall	
document	that	the	existing	WCFs	within	1500	feet	of	the	proposed	WCF,	or	a	WCF	within	
1500	feet	of	the	proposed	WCF	for	which	application	has	been	filed	and	not	denied,	
cannot	be	modified	to	accommodate	another	provider;	and,	

	
Response:		The	only	existing	monopole	tower	located	within	1,500	feet	of	the	proposed	location	cannot	be	
modified	as	it	is	not	designed	to	be	extended	to	the	necessary	height	required	to	avoid	interference	from	the	
tall	trees	currently	surrounding	the	tower.		The	existing	tower	would	need	to	be	removed	and	replaced	with	a	
new	tower	at	least	20-30	feet	taller	to	avoid	interference	unless	the	trees	were	to	be	removed	or	reduced	in	
height	to	approximately	the	100-foot	level	or	lower.			

Attachment D pg 9



   

 4 

	
Topping	the	trees	would	create	undesirable	visual	impacts	to	nearby	residential	areas,	whereas	the	proposed	
location	is	well	screened	to	nearby	residential	areas	to	the	North	and	does	not	require	the	removal	or	
trimming	of	any	existing	trees.		The	topped	trees	would	also	create	a	negative	visual	impact	on	their	own,	as	
over	a	third	of	the	height	would	need	to	be	removed	to	avoid	interference.	
	

(iii) There	are	no	available	buildings,	light	or	utility	poles,	or	water	towers	on	which	antennas	
may	be	located	and	still	provide	the	approximate	coverage	the	tower	is	intended	to	
provide.	

	
Response:		No	available	buildings,	light	or	utility	poles,	or	water	towers	with	adequate	height	to	meet	
coverage	objectives	are	located	in	the	geographical	search	ring	necessary	to	provide	coverage.		See	Search	
Ring	and	½	mile	radius	maps	below.	
	

(b) site	characteristics.		The	proposed	monopole	location	includes	tall,	dense	evergreen	trees	that	
will	screen	at	least	50%	of	the	proposed	monopole	from	the	RL	District	or	from	a	small	lot	
subdivision	in	the	RML	District.	

	
Response:		Application	has	demonstrated	compliance	with	Section	33.025(1)(a)	above,	however	proposed	
location	also	meets	this	requirement	and	includes	tall,	dense	evergreens	trees	that	will	screen	at	least	50%	of	
the	proposed	monopole	from	adjacent	residential	areas.		The	proposed	support	tower	is	sited	in	the	least	
intrusive	location	possible	to	cover	the	gap	in	coverage	and	capacity.	
	

(2) The	City	may	grant	a	variance	to	the	maximum	allowable	height	for	a	WCF	if	the	applicant	
demonstrates:	

(a) It	is	technically	not	practicable	to	provide	the	needed	capacity	or	coverage	the	tower	is	intended	
to	provide	at	a	height	that	meets	the	TDC	requirements.	The	needed	capacity	or	coverage	shall	
be	documented	with	a	Radio	Frequency	report;	and,	

(b) The	collocation	report,	required	as	part	of	the	Architectural	Review	submittal,	shall	document	
that	existing	WCFs,	or	a	WCF	for	which	an	application	has	been	filed	and	not	denied,	cannot	be	
modified	to	provide	the	capacity	or	coverage	the	tower	is	intended	to	provide.	

	
Response:		Not	applicable	–	Applicant	is	not	requesting	a	variance	to	the	maximum	allowable	height	for	the	
proposed	WCF.	
	
	 	

Attachment D pg 10



   

 5 

VERIZON	SEARCH	RING	
 

	
	

EXISTING	TOWER	1,500’	RADIUS	WITH	VERIZON	SEARCH	RING	OVERLAP	
	

	
	

	 	

Attachment D pg 11



   

 6 

½	MILE	RADIUS	OF	PROPOSED	TOWER	
	

	

Attachment D pg 12



RF Usage and Facility 
Justification

Durham

Prepared by Verizon Wireless Walid Nasr

Jun 14, 2017

Attachment D pg 13



Capacity is the need for more wireless resources.
Cell sites have a limited amount of resources to
handle voice calls, data connections, and data
volume. When these limits are reached, user
experience quickly degrades. This could mean
customers may no longer be able to make/receive
calls nor be able to browse the internet. It could
also mean that webpages will be very slow to
download.

Coverage is the need to expand 
wireless service into an area that 
either has no service or bad service.  
The request for service often comes 
from  customers or emergency 
personnel.  Expansion of service could 
mean improving the signal levels in a 
large apartment complex or new 
residential community.  It could also 
mean providing new service along a 
newly built highway.

Introduction:
There are two main drivers that prompt the need for a new cell site. One is
coverage and the other is capacity.

Attachment D pg 14



Capacity is the amount of resources a cell site has to handle customer demand.  We utilize 
sophisticated programs that use current usage trends to forecast future capacity needs.  Since it 
takes an average of (1-3) years to complete a cell site project, we have to start the acquisition 
process several years in advance to ensure the new cell site is in place before the existing cell site 
hits capacity limits.

Location, Location, Location.  A good capacity cell site needs to be in the center of the user 
population which ensures even traffic distribution around the cell.  A typical cell site is configured 
in a pie shape, with each slice (aka. sector) holding 33% of the resources.  Optimal performance is 
achieve when traffic is evenly distributed across the 3 sectors.

Attachment D pg 15



The proposed Durham site is a capacity site. 
This site will offload the existing sites King 
City, Muddy Water, TigerHS.

Coverage Area of Existing Site

Attachment D pg 16



The proposed Durham site is a capacity site. 
This site will offload the existing sites King 
City, Muddy Water, TigerHS.

Coverage Area Offloaded by New 
Site

Durham

Residential area

Attachment D pg 17



The proposed Durham site is a capacity site. 
This site will offload the existing sites King 
City, Muddy Water, TigerHS.

Coverage Area Offloaded by New 
Site at New Proposed Location

Durham

Residential area

Marginal coverage in residential area due to 
surrounding trees at existing ATC tower 

Attachment D pg 18



Coverage with Durham Site

Durham

Attachment D pg 19



Coverage with Durham Site at New 
Proposed Location

Durham

Attachment D pg 20



Need Case for:  Durham

Summary: The existing sites King City, Muddy Water, TigerHS cannot carry the data traffic that exists in the 
area it serves. 

Detail below:

- Exact data about sites is proprietary and cannot be disclosed due to competitive reasons.  

- The existing cell sites King City, Muddy Water, TigerHS are forecasted to reach capacity in the near future.  

- The new cell site Durham will provide additional resources to existing sites.  It will take some users off of 
existing sites, which will alleviate the capacity constraint.  

- This will improve customer experience (faster webpage downloads and fewer drop calls).

- Without the new site Durham, existing sites in area will reach capacity which will negatively impact customer’s 
ability to make/receive calls and browse the internet.

Attachment D pg 21



Andrew H. Thatcher 
Environmental Health Physics 

 
July 13, 2017 

 
To:  
Acom Consulting, Inc. 
5200 SW Meadows Rd 
Suite 150 
Lake Oswego, OR 97035 
 
Acom consulting has requested that I review the existing antenna site at 10699 SW 
Herman Road, Tualatin OR, and evaluate the interference potential due to the existing 
tree canopy as shown in Figure 1.  In performing this evaluation I'll review the basics of 
wireless transmission, what cellular technology can compensate for and what results in a 
deficient site.  Included in the review is Verizon's propagation models1 for both their 
proposed Durham site and the existing ATC tower. 
 
In a perfect world for wireless transmission, an un-attenuated radio signal would be sent 
by the antenna and received by the user without any interference.  This is rarely the case 
as buildings, hills and trees all combine to make the signals propagate along multiple 
pathways.  The three primary components of signal propagation paths are reflection, 
diffraction and scattering.  Reflection occurs from large smooth surfaces such as 
roadways or buildings.  Diffraction occurs when a large object is in the direct line of sight 
path, such as a hill or building.  Scattering occurs when the radio waves contact objects 
similar or smaller than the wavelength of the frequency of interest.  For wireless 
transmission that can be from 700 MHz (~17" wavelength) to 2100 MHz (~6" 
wavelength).  Scattering would be the dominant interaction with trees while all sources of 
interference serve to attenuate the signal to some degree with each interaction. 
 
So the presence of trees creates scattering which causes signal distortion in addition to 
signal attenuation.  The transmitted signals received by the end user (a person's cell 
phone) will consist not only of the original (un-attenuated) signal but also several 
secondary signals traveling on different paths.  These multi-path signals, since they are a 
result of  scattering (since we're concerned with the effects of trees), travel a longer signal 
path and therefore arrive at an end user (cell phone) later than the original un-attenuated 
signal.  These late signal arrivals become interference and can result in distortion of the 
original signal.  This type of distortion is frequency dependent with greater distortion 
occurring at higher frequencies.  Multi-path signals are a common occurrence in our 
environment but such multi-path signals are due to stationary objects such as homes, 
rooftops, and even trees at a distance.  Such distortions can readily be corrected due to 
the use of a RAKE2 receiver in the phone.  However, for a tree canopy in a near field 
environment such as in Figure 1 the obstruction is not constant but in fact continuously 

                                                           
1 Propagation modeling provided by W. Nasr, Verizon RF Engineer, 7/5/2017. 
2 Briefly, RAKE receivers are used in the receiver phones of Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) 
systems.  The receiver collects and treats each time shifted version of the original signal as an independent 
signal and then combines them into a single signal provided the delay is not too long. 

5 2 2  N O R T H  E  S T  •  T A C O M A ,  W A  •  9 8 4 0 3  

P H O N E :  2 5 3 . 6 1 7 . 1 4 4 9  •  T H A T C H E R . D R E W @ C O M C A S T . N E T  

Attachment D pg 22



 – 2 – July 16, 2017  

 

changing.   The result is scattered signals that may be stronger than direct signal due to 
signal attenuation since the tree canopy density is not uniform and the signals going 
through the tree will be attenuated differently.  Further, the motion of the trees with wind 
presents a continuously changing foliage density that results in selective signal fading 
with time.  For the tree canopy shown in Figure 1, the near field environment could easily 
result in signal attenuation of 10 dB to as much as 20 dB.  Combine this attenuation with 
the constantly changing signal fading environment and the result in a constantly changing 
delay (due to wind) that the RAKE receiver would have difficulty separating as noise.  
Reviewing Figure 1 again and one can see that the antennas are near the tops of the trees 
so the tree movement would include swaying of the trees in addition to individual branch 
movements. 
 
Figure 2 is the predicted propagation to the residential location of interest from the 
existing antenna located within the trees.  Figure 3 shows the same residential area with 
the antenna located in the proposed location.  Both figures are provided to support the 
previous qualitative analysis.  The figures show that the Reference Signal Received 
Power (RSRP) is at least 10 dBm lower for each location.  Note that this analysis does 
not consider the effect of wind. 
 
Trees at a distance from the antennas may present acceptable interference as the overall 
impact could be managed.  For antennas placed well beneath the tree canopy in a near 
field environment affecting all three radiating sectors, it would be difficult to envision a 
wireless network that could compensate for these factors, the presence of wind, and 
remain effective in terms of capacity for the site and successful integration with the 
surrounding wireless sites.  The attenuation and scattering of the signal through the trees 
would result in a lower transmitted power level that could not be improved by increasing 
the power as that would only serve to also increase the power of the multipath signals.  In 
short, such a setup in the trees would present a problem regardless of the transmitted 
power level. 
 
To summarize, the existing ATC tower is not a suitable antenna site without substantial 
modification based on the information provided in this report. 

Attachment D pg 23



 – 3 – July 16, 2017  

 

 
Figure 1:  Photo of  existing tower surrounded by a dense tree canopy in a near field environment 

Attachment D pg 24



 – 4 – July 16, 2017  

 

 
Figure 2:  Predicted propagation model showing the residential area of  interest from the existing 
antenna. 
 

 
Figure 3:  Predicted propagation model showing the RSRP for the residential area of  interest with the 
proposed antenna location. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D pg 25



 – 5 – July 16, 2017  

 

Qualifications  
 
I am a member of the IEEE,  the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers as well 
as a member of the Health Physics Society.  I am a board certified health physicist with a 
masters in health physics from the Georgia Institute of Technology.  I have over 29 years 
of experience in the evaluation of both ionizing and non ionizing radiation sources.  I am 
a consultant to the ACGIH Threshold Limit Values for Physical Agents Committee as 
well as a non ionizing subject matter editor for the Health Physics Journal. 
 
 

Regards, 

    Andrew H. Thatcher, MSHP, CHP 

 

 

Attachment D pg 26



Attachment D pg 27



POR DURHAM WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY (WCF) 
 

VARIANCE APPLICATION (VAR-17-0001) 
 

ATTACHMENT C: ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 
 
 
The issue before the Tualatin Planning Commission (TPC) is consideration of a Variance (VAR) request for 
Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) separation that would allow the construction of a new 100-foot-
tall monopole with antennas mounted at the top and opportunities for ancillary ground equipment within 
1,500 feet of an existing WCF located at 10699 SW Herman Road approximately 800 feet southwest of 
the proposed WCF location. The proposed WCF would be located at 10290 SW Tualatin Road (Tax 
Map/Lot: 2S1 23B 000800) on a property owned by Tote ‘N Stow and operates as a storage facility for 
recreational vehicles. 

In order to grant the proposed variance, the request must meet the approval criteria of Tualatin 
Development Code (TDC) Section 33.025(1). The applicant prepared a narrative that addresses the 
criteria, which is included within the application materials (Attachment B), and staff has reviewed this and 
other application materials and included pertinent excerpts below. 

The following materials and descriptions are based largely on the applicant’s narrative; staff has made 

some minor edits. Staff comments, findings, and conditions of approval are in Italic font. 

Section 33.025 – Criteria for Granting a Variance for a Wireless Communication Facility. 

No variance to the separation or height requirements for wireless communication facilities shall be 

granted by the Planning Commission unless it can be shown that the following criteria are met.  The 

criteria for granting a variance to the separation or height requirements for wireless communication 

facilities shall be limited to this section, and shall not include the standard variance criteria of Section 

33.020, Conditions for Granting a Variance that is not for a Sign or a Wireless Communication Facility. 

(1) The City may grant a variance from the provisions of TDC 73.470(9), which requires a 1500-foot 
separation between WCFs, providing the applicant demonstrates compliance with (a) or (b) 
below. 
(a) coverage and capacity. 

(i) It is technically not practicable to provide the needed capacity or coverage the tower 
is intended to provide and locate the proposed tower on available sites more than 
1,500 feet from an existing wireless communication facility or from the proposed 
location of a wireless communication facility for which an application has been filed 
and not denied. The needed capacity or coverage shall be documented with a Radio 
Frequency report; 

Applicant Response: Verizon Wireless, the co-applicant, has done extensive research looking at 
opportunities in the area to collocate on existing towers or buildings, as that is always a preferred option 
when available. If an existing tower or structure is not available at the specified height or not attainable 
because of space constraints or unreliable structural design, then Verizon Wireless will propose a new 
tower. In this instance, there is one existing tower, the ATC tower, which is located outside of the search 
area designated as usable by Verizon Wireless’ RF department, but within the 1,500-foot radius of the 

Attachment D pg 28



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
November 16, 2017 
Page 2 of 4 

proposed facility. This tower is not viable as a solution to meet their coverage and capacity objectives due 
to the existing trees that would cause interference. There are no other existing towers available to 
collocate on within the area of interest thus a new tower is being proposed, which will in turn be available 
for other providers to collocate on in the future. 

In order to meet the Verizon’s coverage and capacity objectives, it is necessary to site a tower within the 
search ring provided by Verizon’s RF department as shown below. Moving outside this search ring is 
technically not practicable and has adverse effects on providing the needed coverage and capacity 
objectives the tower is intended to provide, which include nearby high-traffic residential areas to the 
North. Siting outside the search ring can also create interference with other nearby network sites where 
coverage may overlap. 

The Applicant is requesting a variance to the 1,500-foot tower separation requirement. There is an existing 
146-foot ATC monopole support structure outside of the search ring, approximately 750 feet to the SW 
of the proposed support tower, located at 10699 SW Herman Road. Per the tower owner, there is 
currently available space on the tower at the 100-foot level, however this is not high enough to avoid 
interference from multiple trees surrounding the tower and still meet coverage and capacity objectives 
to the North, as detailed in the attached RF Usage and Facility Justification Report and RF Engineer 
Interference Letter. 

Locating the tower within the search ring and outside the 1,500-foot radius of the nearby existing ATC 
tower is also not a desirable alternative as it would mean locating in another part of the ML zone without 
existing screening or in the RML or RMH zone, where a conditional use permit would be required and 
where it would be very visible to nearby residential areas. In addition, T-Mobile has also indicated that 
they intend on co-locating on the proposed WCF, if approved, as the existing ATC tower to the SW will not 
meet their coverage and capacity requirements either as noted in the attached Letter from T-Mobile RF. 

Staff notes that the search ring is defined by the service provider based on their coverage and capacity 
objectives. As highlighted in the “RF Usage and Facility Justification” report, the proposed WCF is intended 
to improve service to the residential areas immediately adjacent to and on both sides of the Tualatin River 
(see Figures C-1 and C-2). Areas within the search ring but outside of the 1,500-foot radius of the existing 
WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road are either within or closer to residential planning districts which either 
prohibit completely or restrict heights of WCFs (see Figure C-3). 

  

Figure C-1: Existing Coverage Figure C-2: Proposed Coverage 

 

Attachment D pg 29



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
November 16, 2017 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Figure C-3: Search Ring and 1,500-Foot Separate Overlap Map 

Staff finds that this criteria is met. 

(ii) The collocation report, required as part of the Architectural Review submittal, shall 
document that the existing WCFs within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF, or a WCF 
within 1500 feet of the proposed WCF for which application has been filed and not 
denied, cannot be modified to accommodate another provider; and 

Applicant Response: The only existing monopole tower located within 1,500 feet of the proposed location 
cannot be modified as it is not designed to be extended to the necessary height required to avoid 
interference from the tall trees currently surrounding the tower. The existing tower would need to be 
removed and replaced with a new tower at least 20-30 feet taller to avoid interference unless the trees 
were to be removed or reduced in height to approximately the 100-foot level or lower. 

Topping the trees would create undesirable visual impacts to nearby residential areas, whereas the 
proposed location is well screened to nearby residential areas to the North and does not require the 
removal or trimming of any existing trees. The topped trees would also create a negative visual impact on 
their own, as over a third of the height would need to be removed to avoid interference. 

Based on the conditions at 10699 SW Herman Road, modifying the existing WCF to attach functioning 
antennas would require either an additional height variance for the existing WCF (which already received 
one to permit its construction in 2000) or a forced height reduction in the trees adjacent to the existing 
monopole. In the analysis and findings for the variance (VAR-99-02) that allowed the construction of the 
existing 146-foot-tall WCF, it was noted that one of the reasons for the granting of that variance was to 
preserve the grove of approximately 50 tall conifers at heights of 100 to 120 feet (the construction of the 
existing WCF resulted in the removal of 6 trees). VAR-99-02 included the following: 

“The City as the landowner desires to retain the large conifer trees on the subject portion of the 
Operations Center property and requires that development such as the proposed communications 
facility disturb as few conifer trees on the site as possible. The applicant states that wireless RF 

Attachment D pg 30



VAR-17-0001 POR Durham Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 
November 16, 2017 
Page 4 of 4 

signals must travel in an unobstructed path from the facility to the user. Because the tower and 
antennae are proposed to be located in the grove of 100'-120' tall conifers and the City as the 
property owner does not wish to have the obstructing trees removed, the antennae must be at a 
height greater than the height of the neighboring trees (with consideration of the future growth 
of the trees).” 

As such, barring a reversal in the City’s preference to not remove trees on its Operations Center site, the 
options for locating a new WCF in this area include either further increasing the height of the existing 146-
foot-tall WCF (the maximum allowed WCF height in the Light Manufacturing [ML] Planning District is 100 
feet) or constructing a new structure. The applicant is making the case that a new 100-foot-tall structure 
would result in less impacts than extending the height of the existing WCF at 10699 SW Herman Road. 

Staff finds that this criteria is met. 

(iii) There are no available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers on which 
antennas may be located and still provide the approximate coverage the tower is 
intended to provide. 

Applicant Response: No available buildings, light or utility poles, or water towers with adequate height to 
meet coverage objectives are located in the geographical search ring necessary to provide coverage. See 
Search Ring and ½ mile radius maps. 

Staff notes that—through field visits—the  applicant is correct in their assertion that there are no other 
structures of suitable height to attach antennas that would provide approximate coverage as the proposed 
WCF, also noting the maximum structure height (outside of flagpoles and WCFs) of 50 feet in the Light 
Manufacturing (ML) Planning District. 

Staff finds that this criteria is met. 

(b) site characteristics. The proposed monopole location includes tall, dense evergreen trees 
that will screen at least 50% of the proposed monopole from the RL District or from a small 
lot subdivision in the RML District. 

Applicant Response: Application has demonstrated compliance with Section 33.025(1)(a) above, however 
proposed location also meets this requirement and includes tall, dense evergreens trees that will screen 
at least 50% of the proposed monopole from adjacent residential areas. The proposed support tower is 
sited in the least intrusive location possible to cover the gap in coverage and capacity. 

Staff notes that the applicant has chosen to demonstrate compliance with TDC Sections 33.025(1)(a)(i) 
through (iii) above; therefore, a compliance determination with TDC Section 33.025(1)(b) is not required 
and the standards in this section do not apply. 

SUMMARY OF ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

Based on the application materials and the analysis and findings presented above, staff finds that VAR-
17-0001 meets all criteria of TDC 32.025(1)(a), “Criteria for Granting a Variance for a Wireless 
Communication Facility.” 

Attachment D pg 31



TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

VAR-17-0001 
POR DURHAM 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION 
FACILITY (WCF)

Attachment D pg 32



TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

PURPOSE OF HEARING

02

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

• Consideration of a variance to allow a new 
wireless communication facility (WCF) within 
1,500-feet of an existing WCF

• Planning Commission must find that applicant 
demonstrates compliance with Tualatin 
Development Code (TDC) 33.025(1)(a) or
33.025(1)(b)

Attachment D pg 33



HEARING AGENDA

03

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

• Staff Presentation

• Applicant Presentation

• Public Comment

• Commission Deliberation and Decision

Attachment D pg 34



04

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001 
POR DURHAM WCF

EXISTING WCF

PROPOSED WCF

Attachment D pg 35



05

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

PROPOSED WCF

SW TETON AVENUE

Attachment D pg 36



APPLICANT PROPOSAL

• Applicant proposes to locate a monopole/WCF on the 
Tote ‘N Stow property at 10290 SW Tualatin Road 
within 1,500 feet of an existing WCF

06

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001 
POR DURHAM WCF

Attachment D pg 37



VARIANCE APPROVAL CRITERIA

07

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001 
POR DURHAM WCF

TDC 33.025(1)(a)
The City may grant a variance from the provisions of TDC 
73.470(9), which requires a 1500-foot separation between 
WCFs, providing the applicant demonstrates compliance 
with (a) or (b) below:

(a) Coverage and capacity; or
(b) Site characteristics.

Attachment D pg 38



VARIANCE APPROVAL CRITERIA

TDC 33.025(1)(a)(i)
It is technically not practicable to provide the needed 
capacity or coverage the tower is intended to provide and 
locate the proposed tower on available sites more than 
1,500 feet from an existing wireless communication 
facility.

• Staff finds this criterion is met.

08

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

Attachment D pg 39



VARIANCE APPROVAL CRITERIA

09

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

Existing Coverage Proposed Coverage

TDC 33.025(1)(a)(i)

Attachment D pg 40



VARIANCE APPROVAL CRITERIA

10

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

TDC 33.025(1)(a)(ii)
The collocation report shall document that the existing 
WCFs within 1,500 feet of the proposed WCF cannot be 
modified to accommodate another provider.

• Staff finds this criterion is met.

Attachment D pg 41



VARIANCE APPROVAL CRITERIA

11

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

Existing 146-foot-tall 
WCF at 10699 SW 
Herman Road

TDC 33.025(1)(a)(ii)

Attachment D pg 42



VARIANCE APPROVAL CRITERIA

12

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

TDC 33.025(1)(a)(iii)
There are no available buildings, light or utility poles, or 
water towers on which antennas may be located and still 
provide the approximate coverage the tower is intended 
to provide.

• Staff finds this criterion is met.

Attachment D pg 43



NEXT STEPS (IF APPROVED)

13

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

• Architectural Review (AR) of the physical 
elements of the proposed WCF

Attachment D pg 44



PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS

1. Approve VAR-17-0001 as drafted;

2. Deny VAR-17-0001 and cite which criteria 
applicant fails to meet; or

3. Continue discussion to a later date.

14

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

Attachment D pg 45



QUESTIONS
DISCUSSION

RECOMMENDATIONS

15

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION
NOVEMBER 16, 2017

VAR-17-0001
POR DURHAM WCF

Attachment D pg 46



From: Jason Rogers
To: Charles Benson
Subject: AR17-0010 POR Durham
Date: Thursday, November 02, 2017 1:59:37 PM

Charles –
 
In response to the notice from the City of Tualatin, I wanted to send my comments as a
property owner.  Myself and another homeowner from my neighborhood plan to attend the
meeting that is planned for 11/16/17 at the Juanita Pohl Center.  In the event that something
may eliminate attendance between now and 11/16/17, I’m sending so these are part of the
record and discussion:
 
In reviewing the original notice dated 4/17/17 I became concerned about not only the facility
but also the monopole.  My first concern relates to the facility and equipment that has been
described.  More specifically the concern is for any increased commercial and truck / vehicle
traffic at and around a largely residential area with a predominance of children.  The second
concern relates to the 100’ monopole.  As mentioned, this is a largely residential and low-rise
industrial area so my concern as a property owner is any negative effect on property values
with the construction of the tower which could become an eye-sore.  Many of the marketing
documents on the project have described the location consideration to include the aesthetic
component and that the first priority would be a location that can be shielded by existing
trees.  Considering the aforementioned demographic of the area I find it hard to visualize
where, around the Tote-N-Stow property one could “hide” what equates to a 9+ story
building.  Finally the last document I received outlined this as a Verizon project.  I am not nor
do I anticipate being a Verizon customer so if this facility or pole have any negative, aesthetic
result (as I understand it) I would see no benefit.
 
Regards,
 
Jason Rogers
Agency Principal - AOA West Insurance, Inc.
(503) 245-1960 ph.
(503) 245-2049 fax
www.aoawest.com
 

Attachment D pg 47

mailto:jason@aoawest.com
mailto:cbenson@tualatin.gov
http://www.aoawest.com/


Attachment- E p1



Attachment- E p2



Attachment- E p3



Attachment- E p4



Attachment- E p5



Attachment- E p6



Attachment- E p7



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

FROM: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager

DATE: 12/07/2017

SUBJECT: Resolution NO. TDC 609-17

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:
A resolution of the Planning Commission affirming its decision related to Variance 17-0001
(VAR17-0001).

Attachments: Attachment A - Resolution NO. TDC-609-17



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. TDC-609-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION _________________ 
__________THE VARIANCE APPLICATION FOR A WIRELESS 
COMMUNICATION FACILITY TO LOCATE AT 10290 SW TUALATIN ROAD 
WITHIN 1,500 FEET OF AN EXISTING WIRELESS COMMUNICATION 
FACILITY. (VAR-17-0001). 

 
WHEREAS, on November 16, 2017, a quasi-judicial public hearing was held 

before the Planning Commission for consideration of a variance upon the application of 
Acom Consulting, Inc.; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice of public hearing was given as required by the Tualatin 

Development Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission heard and considered the testimony and 
evidence presented on behalf of the applicant, City staff, and those appearing at the 
public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, after the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning Commission 

deliberated and by this resolution makes its decision; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TUALATIN, 

OREGON, that: 
 

Section 1.  Variance (VAR-17-0001), considered by the Planning Commission is hereby (check 
one): 

 
�  Approved; 
 
�  Approved with Conditions; 
 
�  Denied. 
 

Section 2.  The Planning Commission adopts as its findings the Analysis and Findings set forth in 
Exhibit 1, which includes the list of conditions, if any, and which is attached and incorporated herein.  
 

Section 3. This resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

Adopted by the Planning Commission this ____ day of _________, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
BY _______________________ 
                City Attorney  

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
BY _______________________ 

          CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY _______________________ 
                 Recorder 

 
 


	Agenda
	AI_2541__2541
	ATT_TPC Minutes 11.16.17
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
	2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA):
	4. ACTION ITEMS:
	5. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF:
	6.     FUTURE ACTION ITEMS
	7.      ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION
	8.       ADJOURNMENT

	AI_2542_Continued Hearing for VAR17-0001
	ATT_Attachment A- Revised Analysis and Findings and Exhibits
	Attachment A_Analysis and Findings_revised Dec 7 2017
	Exhibit A Materials submitted at Nov 17 hearing by ATC
	Letter - Tualatin Planning Commission (11-16-17 hearing), 4839-8003-3877, 4
	RF Certification Letter_308345 King City OR 1_Signed_11-16-17
	Slides for 11-16-17 PC Hearing - Comparitive ACL Tree Clutter Analysis (11-09-17), 4834-5477-0005, 1

	Exhibit B OperationsCellTower_155FootRadius

	ATT_Attachment B- Supplemental materials from Acom (applicant)
	POR Durham - Variance Letter to Planning Commission 11.22.17 (from Acom Applicant)
	POR Durham - RF Letter & Maps 11.20.17 (from Acom applicant)
	POR Durham - Variance ATC Tree Slides 11.17.17 (from Acom applicant)
	POR Durham - Variance TMO Emails (from Acom applicant)

	ATT_Attachment C- Supplemental materials from ATC (opponent)
	ATT_Attachment D - Staff Report and Attachments from November 17, 2016
	Agenda
	AI_2532__2532
	ATT_TPC Minutes 9.21.17
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
	2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA):
	4. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF:
	5. ACTION ITEMS:
	6.     FUTURE ACTION ITEMs
	7.      ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION
	8.       ADJOURNMENT

	AI_2533_POR Durham WCF Variance
	ATT_Attachment A - Vicinity Map
	ATT_Attachment B - Variance Application
	Application For Variance
	Variance Narrative

	ATT_Attachment C - Analysis and Findings
	ATT_Attachment D - Powerpoint Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15

	ATT_Attachment E - Public Comments

	ATT_Attachment E - Applicant Rebuttal November 29, 2017
	AI_2547_Variance Resolution TDC 609-17
	ATT_Attachment A - Resolution NO. TDC-609-17

